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November 29, 2018

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1. Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol
Services, to retroactively exercise a renewal option to an existing sole source agreement
with Greater Nashua Mental Health Center at Community Council (Vendor #154112), 100
West Pearl Street, Nashua, NH 03060, for the provision of clinical substance use disorder
services in support of the Hillsborough County South's Drug Court expansion effort by
extending the contract completion date from September 30, 2018 to September 30, 2019
with no change to the price limitation, effective upon Governor and Executive Council
approval.

2. Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol
Services, to retroactively exercise a renewal option to an existing sole source agreement
with JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. dba Community Health Institute (Vendor
#161611 - B001), 501 South Street, Bow, NH 03304, for the provision of data evaluation
services in support of the Hillsborough County South's Drug Court expansion effort by
increasing the price limitation by $43,340 from $851,622 in the aggregate to $894,962 in the
aggregate and extending the contract completion date from September 30, 2018 to
September 30, 2019, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval. 100%
Federal funds.

The original agreements were approved by the Governor and Executive Council on November
18, 2015 (Late ltem#A).

Funds to support these requests are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year
2019 and are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2020 upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with ability to adjust encumbrances between State
Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, without further approval from Governor and Executive Council,
if needed and justified.

05-95-49-491510-5090 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: DIV
OF COMM BASED CARE SVC, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, TREATMENT DRUG COURT
GRANT

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center at Community Council - Vendor #154112
100 West Pearl Street, Nashua, NH 03060

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Object
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount

2016 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 49155090 $184,277.50 $0 $184,277.50

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 49155090 ,  $243,870 $0 $243,870

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 49155090 $243,870 $0 $243,870

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 49155090 $59,592.50 $0 $59,592.50

-  - Subtotal $731,610 $0 $731,610
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JSI Research & Training institute, Inc. dba Community Health Institute - Vendor #161611 - 6001
501 South Street, Bow. NH 03304

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Object
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount

2016 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 49155090 $31,383 $0 $31,383

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 49155090 $40,004 $0 $40,004

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 49155090 $40,004 $0 $40,004

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 49155090 $8,621 $0 $8,621

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92055090 $0 $32,505 $32,505

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92055090 $0 $10,835 $10,835

Subtotal $120,012 $43,340 $163,352

Grand Total $851,622 $43,340 $894,962

EXPLANATION

These requests are retroactive because the Department did not receive approval of the
extension request until September 20, 2018, which did not allow enough time to request approval from
the Governor and Executive Council before the original contract completion date of September 30,
2018. Retroactive approval is being requested in order to continue the delivery of SUD treatment
services without interruption to the individuals currently in this drug court program.

These requests are sole source because the Contractors are currently providing services as
required by the SAMHSA grant.

The Department received a Drug Court grant from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Agency (# 6H79TI026092-03M001) on behalf of the Hillsborough County South Drug Court
(HCSDC) in late 2015. At the request of HCSDC, the Department assisted in obtaining a no-cost
extension from SAMHSA to continue this project, based on successful results to date and ongoing
need. As of 9/30/18, HCSDC had served 132 individuals since the inception of the grant.

There are two contracts under this grant. The Greater Nashua Mental Health Center provides
Substance Use Disorder treatment services to individuals under the Court's jurisdiction. These services
include individual and group therapy along with the use of a specially designed evidence-based
curriculum. This model of treatment has been proven to improve recovery, reduce recidivism with
respect to criminal activity, and reduce the need for incarceration for individuals experiencing addiction.
The Community Health Institute provides data collection, reporting, performance monitoring and
evaluation services to assess and ensure the continued effectiveness of the model and the success of

program participants.

These requests, if approved, will allow the contractors to continue to deliver effective and
successful services until September 30, 2019, providing substance use disorder services for up to
twenty (20) additional participants.

Both agreements contain renewal language that grants the Department the right to renew the
agreements for up to three (3) additional years, subject to the continued availability of funds,
satisfactory performance by the Contractor, and approval from the Governor and Executive Council.
This request, if approved, will exercise one (1) of the three additional years for each contract.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the contract to the contrary, no services shall continue
after June 30, 2019, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for services provided after
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June 30, 2019, unless and until an appropriation for these services has been received from the state
legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY 2020-2021 bierinium.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, the Department may not
be able to continue to provide this support for the Hillsborough County South Drug Court, and additional
individuals may not receive these highly effective services - leaving them to continue to struggle with
addiction, and increasing the likelihood of involvement with New Hampshire's criminal justice system.

Area Served: Southern Hillsborough County

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the US Department of Health and Human Services,
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, SAMHSA Treatment Drug Courts,
Catalog of Federal and Domestic Assistance Number, 93.243, Federal Award Identification Number
(FAIN) # TI026092. (H79TI026092).

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Katja S. Fox
Director

Approved by:\
Fre/'A. Meiers

Commissioner

The Deparlmenl of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Clinical Servlces-Hlllsborough County Drug Court Expansion

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Clinical Servlces-Hlllsborough County Drug Court Expansion Contract

This 1" Amendment to the Clinical Services-Hiilsborough County Drug Court Expansion contract
(hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #1") dated this 15th day of November 2018, is by and between
the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Department") and The Community Council of Nashua, NH d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental
Health Center at Community Council, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a non-profit
corporation with a place of business at 100 West Pearl Street, Nashua, NH 03060.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on November 18, 2015 (Late Item #A), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the
terms and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 3. the State may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of
the contract and renew services for up to three (3) additional years, upon written agreement of the
parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement for one (1) year with no change to the
price limitation to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 30, 2019.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White., Director.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

4. Add Exhibit B-1 Amendment #1, SFY 2019 Budget.

5. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center Amendment #1

at Community Council, Page 1 of 3
SS-2015-BDAS-00-HILLS

U --28-15



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Clinical Servlces-Hillsborough County Drug Court Expansion

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date

Date

Name:

Title:

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center at

Community Council

Name:

Title: p  \ Cio

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

before theState of County of ]>] on
undersigned officer, pehBonally appearecft^'
be the person whpsejrame is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated abov^

person i^ntified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to

otary Public or Justice of the Peace

Name and Title of Notary dr Justice i^he Peace

My Commission Expires: ](lAJ^ 2-1 ̂

MY

5 : COMMISSION •. •
5  •• expires
5  : JUNE 21,2022 f

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center
at Community Council.
SS-2015-BDAS-OO-HILLS

Amendment #1

Page 1 of 3
CJi

llMi8



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Clinical Servlces-Hlllsborough County Drug Court Expansion

The preceding Amendment, having been revlew/ed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Title: .,^2/7/

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center Amendment #1

at Community Council. Page 1 of 3
SS-2015-BDAS-OO-HILLS
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Exhibit B-1 Amendment #1

SPY 2019 Budget

Personnel $20,000 $0 $20,000

Fringe $7,220 $0 $7,220

Travel $10,460 $0 $10,460

Equipment $0 $0 $0

Supplies $600 $0 $600

Other $2,250 $0 $2,250

Indirect Costs (28% $11,348.40 $0 $11,348.00

TOTAL: $51,878.40 $0 $51,878

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center

at Community Council

SS-2015-BDAS-00-HILLS

Exhibit B-1 Amendment #1

Page 1 of 1 Contractor Initials



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information." Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements ,,
Page 1 of 9 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V6, Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements •, -wi iA
Page 2 of 9 Date V



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. if DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initiala
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will t>e deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All sen/ers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

V5. Last update 1CV09/18 Exhibit K CQniractorinHlals
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanltization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanltization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. 8.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless othenwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless othenwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (I.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials C-A-
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the sun/ey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

V5. Lastupdate 10/09/18 ExtiibitK Contractor Initials
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must In all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, Including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for Individually Identifiable health
Information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that Is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https:/Awww.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach Immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This Includes a confidential information breach, computer
security Incident, or suspected breach which affects or Includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this Information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only If encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such Information.

/V
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with alt applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials.
DHHS Information

Security Requirements <.
Page 8 of 9 Date_llIIlZP



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

CJh
V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials

DHHS Information

Security Requirements
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, Williani M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that THE COMMUNITY COUNCIL

OF NASHUA, N.H. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on December

24, 1923.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Stale's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is conceiiicd. ^

Business ID: 63050

Certificate Number: 0004194379

SI

u.

A

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

thc'Scal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this 8th day of October A.D. 2018.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I. L. , do hereby certify that;
(Nam^f the elected Offi9pr/5f\he Agency: cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of mm tVJll
Igency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on _
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the

(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the ^2^ day of VllMMhuL . 20JT
(Date Contract Signed)

. mcfh4 is the duly elected
(Na

.

of the Agency.

Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

(Signat/reof the Elected office

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of i|l
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this. , day of lUlfWg/U 20 i?.

By L Sm
(Name o^^g^^ted Officer omhe Agency)

5.. i_..D<PlR«fi : =

Commissi

A
stice of the Peace)

NH DHHS. Office Of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1, 2005



AC^RD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE OATS paeDonrrm

10/30/2018

THIS CERTtFlCATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OP INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFRRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certlfleato holder Is an ADDIT10NAL.INSURED. the poacy(tes) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provblons or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, sutHoct to the terms and conditions of the policy, cartain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this eertlflcBts does not confer rlqhts to the certificate hoktor in lieu of such ondorsetrwrrtfs).

PtIOOUCtR

Eaton & Berube Insurance Agency, Inc.
11 Concord Street
Nashua NH 03061

MU& Cathy Beaureoard

5!?!L irtv 603^89-7229 1 Sf »j«». 603-886-4230
ct)eaureaar(l(B>eatonbenibe.com

mSUMRfSI AFFOmmO COVCIUOE KAICF

HSURSR A: Scattsdale insurance Co
MSURS) C0MC03

Community Courtdl of Nashua NH Inc.
(ba Greater Nashua Mental Health Center
at Community Council
100 West Pearl Street

Nashua NH 03060

wsuACR a: Setedive Insurance Grouo 14376

Msunen c: Eastern Alliance Insurance Group

■wsimao:

WSUREhE:

MSUAESF:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUaES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO !»£ INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INnCATB). NOTVWTHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONOlTION OF AMY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TQ WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLIOES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AM) CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

INSK
JJ? TYFeOFMSUftANCe 1 .'ki.IIV,',.! POUCV NUMBER

POLICY EFF
iMMnxvYvvn

POLICY SXP
twijootrrm LBBTS

A X COMMCROALCCJiOUlUASnjTY

)E OCCUR

Y V OPSQOBftSOe 1V12/3018 11/12/2019 EACH OCCURRENCE 32.000000

i CLAIUSJilAC 3300.000

uEO EXP lAnv on* pwieni 33.000

PERSONAL A AOY INJURY 32.000.000
CDa.A0GREGAT6UMITAPPUESP6R:

i  Iloc
OTHER;

CENCRALAGGREGATE 3 2.000.000

PRODUCTS • C0MPO> AGO S2.000.000

3

B AUIfOUOBILEliAaiUTY S2291649 11/1217010 I1/12n0t9 COMBMEDSINOli UMlf
/£• •ebdWI 31.000,000

ANY AUTO

ovmED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

X SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON.OMNED
AUTOS ONLY

eOOLY INJURY {Pv pvKVi) ' s

BOCn.Y INJURY (Pv •ebomi; 3

PROPERTY OAMaOE
rParaeadMi 3

~

3

A UMBReUAUAB

EXCeSSUAB

X OCCUR

ClAIMS-UAOE

V Y uusoozana iui2r20te 11/120019 EACH OCCURRENCE ss.ooaooo

AGGREGATE 33.000.000

IdEO 1 * iRETEWnCNSionm 1 1
3

C wfORKSts cohfcksahom
ANOEMFLOYEarLiABUTY
AMyPPOPBfeTOR/PAATNeweXECUTTve nn
OFPICEIUUEMBEREXCUJOeDr "
(UtMtsfylnNH)

ol^fllpnON OF OPERATIONS batcMr

NfA

0100001139^ tnV20iO 1/13/2019 iv PER OTH.
*  STATUTE ER
EL EACH ACCIDENT 31.000.000

1 E L DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 31,000.000

EL DISEASE • POLICY UUIT tl.COO.OOO
A PiumUornl UaMty

Ren Dm: n/l2/IMS

OPS00U508 1in2f701I 11/12/2019 : 33,000.000
is.ocaooo

V

1  EtchCtaim
Ag^v^ea

DeSCnFTKMCFOFeaAnOHSIUXAnONS/veMCLeS |ACOROtei,A«dlUeMlltomtrto8cn»«ult,mivb«tttKlMdVmMipM*lii«9ul»d)
V\torliexa Compertsatlon tntormaUon; No Excluded officers: coverage for NH.

CERTinCATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Oept of Health & Human Services
Contracts & Procurement
129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPtRA-nON DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WIU BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AinMORSEOREFfteSENTATWE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
e 1968-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name ar>d logo are registered marks of ACORD



Greater Nashua Mental Health Center

at Community Council

Mission Statement of Community Council of Nashua NH, dba Greater Nashua Mental Health Center at

Community Council:

Empowering people to lead full and satisfying lives through

effective treatment and support

7 & 15 Prospect Street • 100 West Pearl Street • 440 Amherst Street • Nashua, NH 03060
Ph 603-889-6147 • w'ww.gnmhc.org • Emergency 800-762-8191 • \T 603-821-0240

United
Way
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BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

The Community Council of Nashua. NH d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health Center

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Community Council of Nashua, NH
d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health Center (the Organization), which comprise the statement of
financial position as of June 30, 2017, and the related statements of activities and changes in net
assets, functional revenue and expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes
to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles: this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estlrhates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Organization, as of June 30, 2017, and the changes in its net assets and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Bangor, ME • Portland, ME • Manchester, NH • Charleston, WV • Phoenix, AZ
berrydunn.com



Board of Directors

The Community Council of Nashua, NH
Page 2

Other Matter

Report on Summarized Comparative Information and Audit.of the Financial Statements as of and for
the Year Ended June 30, 2016

The financial statements of the Organization as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016 were audited
by other auditors whose report dated January 13. 2017, expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements. The summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2016, is consistent in all material respects with the audited financial statements from which it
has been derived.

^  Y ̂  ̂

Manchester, New Hampshire
October 25. 2017



THE COMMUNITY COUNCIL OF NASHUA, NH
D/B/A GREATER NASHUA MENTAL HEALTH CENTER

Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2017

(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2016)

2017 2016

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts and

contractuals of $1,220,072 in 2017 and $2,470,551 in 2016
Investments

Prepaid expenses
Property and equipment, net

Total assets

$  744,554 $ 616,569

1,325,815
1,732,916

191,365
2.830.369

1,227,692
1,668,831

165,761

2.945.707

$ 6.824.819 $ 6.624.560

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Liabilities

Line of credit

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related activities
Accrued vacation

Deferred revenue

Notes payable
Capital lease obligation

Total liabilities

Net assets

Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

$  248,224 $ 1,000,000

104,015 94,303

361,457 313,330

315,145 323,840
- 206,580

1,641,114 1,728,828

37.304 72.386

2.707.259 3.739.267

3,867,763 2,714.890

129,553 71,810

120.244 98.593

4.117.560 2.885.293

$ 6.824.819 $ 6.624.560

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE COMMUNITY COUNCIL OF NASHUA, NH
D/B/A GREATER NASHUA MENTAL HEALTH CENTER

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended June 30, 2017

(With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2016)

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted 2017 2016

Revenues and support
Program service fees, net
New Hampshire Bureau of Behavioral

Health

Federal grants

Rental income

Contribution and support
Other

Total revenues and support

Expenses
Program services
Children's services

Elderly services
Intake/placement services
Crisis response
Vocational services

Nonspecialized outpatient
Multi-service team

Assertive community treatment
Independent housing
Substance abuse

$  10,917,069 $

1,273,645
628,694

18,347
97,510
12.922

12.948.187

-  $ $  10,917,069 $ 10,124,641

1,598,231
582,887

161,959
183,574

3,151
597,290

4,394,118
1,262,217
215,020

1,273,645
628,694

18,347
97,510
12.922

12.948.187

1,598,231

582,887
161,959
183,574

3,151

597,290
4,394,118
1,262,217
215,020

719.080

1,038,848
464,276

40,494
84,880

35.226

11.788.365

2,005,667
535,282

90,594

204,951

221,745
1,062,164

3,960,815
973,342
871,049
458,675

474.376

Total program services 9,717,527 - - 9,717,527 10,858.660

General and administrative 2.104.472 2.104.472 1.388.975

Total expenses 11,821,999 - - 11,821,999 12,247,635

Income (loss) from operations

Other income

Investment income, net

Realized and unrealized gains on
investments

1.126.188 1.126.188 (459.2701

23,549

67.933

3,285

9.476

473

1.363

27,307

78.772

36,680

21.008

Total other income 91.482 12.761 1.836 106.079 57.688

Excess (deficiency) of revenues,
and support and other
income over expenses 1,217,670 12,761 1,836 1,232,267 (401,582)

Reclassification of net assets (64.7971 44.982 19.815 .  ; .

Total change in net assets 1,152,873 57,743 21,651 1,232.267 (401,582)

Net assets. t)eginning of year 2.714.890 71.810 98.593 2.885.293 3.286.875

Net assets, end of year
%  3.867.763 S 129.553 S 120.244 S 4.117.560 $ 2.885.293

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE COMMUNITY COUNCIL OF NASHUA, NH D/B/A GREATER NASHUA MENTAL HEALTH CENTER

Statement of Functional Revenues and Expenses

Year Ended June 30, 2017

Program service fees, net
New Hampshire Bureau of

Behavioral Health

Federal grant
Rental income
Contribution and support

Other

General and administrative
allocation

Total revenue and

support and other
income

Children and

Adolescents

Elderly
Services Intake

Emergency
Services

Assessment

Vocational

Services

Non>

Specialized
Outoatient

Multiservice

Team

Assertive

Community
Treatment

Independent
Houslna Other

Total

Proa rams

Total

Administration ToUl

Aaencv

$ 2,603,059 5  838,124 5  65,502 $  155,912 % $  653,518 $ 6,221,395 $ 1,268,576 $  (6,744) %  226,728 ̂ $10,917,069 $ $10,917,069

5,739

1,500
:

-

61,907

2.210

367,712

40,297

422

1

643,910 182,920

31,658

, 18.M7

11,457

546,701

1,190
7.595

1,273,646
618,656
18,347
3,112

9.806

10,038

94,398
109.195

1,273,646
628,694
18,347

97,510
119.001

2,610,298 838,124 55,502 217,819 2,210 653,518 6,629,827 1,912,485 227,181 793,671 12,840,635 213,631 13,054,266

42.322

S 2.652.620

1.499

S  839.623

993

S  66.496

40 11.691 100.714 34.213 4.064 14.198 213.631 1213.631)

i  221.716 S  2.250 S  665.209 S 6.730.541 $ 1.946.698 5  231.245 S  807.869 $13,054,266 $ i13.0S4.2S6

-5-



THE COMMUNITY COUNCIL OF NASHUA, NH D/B/A GREATER NASHUA MENTAL HEALTH CENTER

Statement of Functional Revenues and Expenses (Concluded)

Year Ended June 30, 2017

Emergency
Children and Elderly Services

Adolescenu Services

Total revenue and

support end other
income $ 2.6S2.620 i  839.623 6  56.495 S  221.716

Expenses

Salaries and wages 1,135,668 394,733 124,553 151,697

Employee benefits 130,645 42,458 13,948 1,214

Payroll taxes 83,072 28,908 9,470 11,460

Substitute staff 4,258 1,038 294 412

Accounting 8 1 • -

Audit fees 4,729 1,104 375 239

Legal fees 1,429 354 92 164

Other professional fees 41,974 59,295 2,626 3,205

Journals and publications 55 13 4 4

Conferences 776 690 7 6

Rent (289) (73) (23) (22)

Heating costs 3,135 787 208 358

Other utilities 15,387 3,901 1,159 1,373

Maintenance and repairs 17,707 4Ar7 1,298 1,679

Other occupancy costs 4,323 1,050 302 403

Office 10,283 2,651 600 1,108

BuBding and housefrald 4,679 1,234 357 464

Food 659 164 55 107

Advertisir>g 167 21 29 (64)
Printing 644 166 33 34

Communication 22,997 8,162 1,382 3,310

Postage 1,689 431 137 122

Staff 18,978 14,384 174 467

Client services 6,832 32 - -

Malpractice insurance 27,241 6,909 2,065 2,391

Vehicle insurance 652 165 49 69

Property and liability
insurarKe 9,818 2,489 739 877

Interest . . • •

Depreciation 20,306 • - -

Equipment rental 6,210 1,321 393 463

Equipment maintenance 618 155 40 72

Membership dues 6,617 1,781 364 552

Other 17.474 4.196 1.229 1.531

Total program 1,598,231 582,887 161,959 183,574

expenses

General and administrative 405.565 113.432 30.354 48.717

Total expenses 2.003.796 696.319 192.313 232.291

Change in net assets .$ 648.824 S  143.304 S  (135.818) 6  flO.675)

Vocational

Sarvlcas

2.2S0

2,817

217

117

3.1S1

3.1S2

(9021

Non- Assertive

Specialized Multiservice Community Independent Total ToUl

Outoatlent Team Treatment Housino Other Proorams Administration Total

%  666.209 S 5.730.541 i 1.946.698 S  231.245 S  807.869 513.054.266 5 513.054.266

336,729 2,849,142 825,038 56,699 522,877 6,399,753 1.144,197 7,643,950

7,808 359,473 147,480 17,681 45,931 766,938 222,609 989,447

26,432 206,464 60,183 3,904 39,127 468,227 81,412 549,639

772 11,128 1,343 . 808 20,053 22,917 42,970

1 13 1 . 1 26 54,495 64,520

810 12,162 1,133 . 916 21,467 8,920 30,387

265 6,833 1,962 . 269 10,368 10,386 20,764

162,409 383,348 42,600 . 48,071 743,628 25,814 769,342

10 142 16 . 10 263 69 322

191 770 1,687 . 2,759 6,685 ^ 2,118 8,803

(64) (797) (104) • 2,941 1,579 • 1,679

588 8,364 1,136 - 600 15,175 6,549 21,724

2,893 42,114 5,683 84 3,087 75,581 20,798 96,379

3,327 48,184 46,982 . 3,616 127,170 28,368 166,538

781 11,347 1,339 . 822 20,367 11,729 32,096

2,298 32,394 11,372 - 9,912 70,735 24,160 94,896

917 13,280 1,770 . 4.276 27,176 6,636 33,812

121 2,018 716 . 315 4,156 4,790 8,946

611 364 («1) . 37 974 1,246 2,220

429 3,929 418 . 666 6,208 2,026 6,234

3,905 74,482 23,120 723 6,609 144,690 29,353 174,043

318 4,702 614 . 349 8,362 2,263 10,626

971 111,048 22,014 192 8,770 176,998 9,264 166,262
. 1,171 42,140 135,837 2,781 188,793 100 188,893

6,122 74,665 9,886 . 6,480 133,758 36,689 170,347

123 1,785 237
•

131 3,201 882 4,083

1,846 26,866 3,662 . 1,969 48,166 13,251 61,417

847 . . . . 847 108,027 108,874

31,734 33,701 . • - 85,741 160,162 246,893

979 14,263 1,890 . 1,046 25,565 7,909 33,474

116 1,641 223 . 117 2,982 10,487 13,469

1,976 14,904 2,047 . 1,683 29,924 13,228 43,162

3.115 45.218 6.013 . 3.307 82.083 33.828 115.911

597,290 4,394,118 1,262,217 216,020 719,080 9,717,527 2,104,472 11,821,999

99.062 1.084.170 192.672 8.422 122.077 2.104.472 (2.104.472)

696.352 5.478.288 1.454.889 223.442 841.157 11.821.999 . 11.821.999

5  (31.143) 6  262.253 6  491.809 5  7.803 5  (33.288) 5 1.232.267 5 -
5 1.232.267
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THE COMMUNITY COUNCIL OF NASHUA, NH
D/B/A GREATER NASHUA MENTAL HEALTH CENTER

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30, 2017

(With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2016)

2017 2016

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $ 1,232,267 $ (401,582)

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 246,740 232,086

Net realized and unrealized gains on investments (78,772) (21,008)

Provision for bad debt 1,106,441 601,695

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable (1,204,364) (965,307)

Prepaid expenses (25,604) (121,418)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 9,712 159,479

Accrued payroll and related expenses and vacation 39,432 102,407

Deferred revenue (206.580) 206.580

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 1.119.272 (207.068)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of investments (536,716) (792,603)

Proceeds from the sale of investments 551,403 979,391

Purchase of property and equipment (130.555) (99.066)

Net cash (used) provided by investing activities (115.868) 87.722

Cash flows from financing activities
Net (repayment) borrowings on the line of credit (751,776) 300,000

Principal payments on notes payable (88,561) (89,439)

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 41,467

Payments on capital lease obligations (35.082) (29.325)

Net cash (used) provided by financing activities (875.419) 222.703

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 127,985 103,357

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 616.569 513.212

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $  744.554 $ 616.569

-7-



THE COMMUNITY COUNCIL OF NASHUA, NH

D/B/A GREATER NASHUA MENTAL HEALTH CENTER

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2017

(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2016)

Organization

The Community Council of Nashua. NH, d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health Center (the Organization)
is a comprehensive community health center located in Nashua, New Hampshire. The Organization's
mission is to work with the community to meet the mental health needs of its residents by offering
evaluation, treatment, resource development, education and research. The Organization is dedicated to
clinical excellence and advocacy with their Community Support Services, Child and Adolescent
Programs. Clinical Research and Integrated HealthCare Programs. Adult Outpatient Services, and
specialty services such as Housing, Deaf Services, Substance Abuse Program. Vocational Services
and Individual and Group Therapy.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. -

Basis of Presentation

Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains and losses are classified as follows:

Unrestricted net assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Temoorarilv restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may be
or will be met by actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time. When a donor
restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and
reported in the consolidated statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Permanently restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they
be maintained permanently by the Organization.

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by
the donor. Amounts received that are designated for future periods or restricted by the donor for
specific purposes are reported as temporarily restricted or permanently restricted support that
increases those net asset classes. When a donor restriction expires, that is. when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets
released from restrictions. The Organization records donor-restricted contributions whose
restrictions are met in the same reporting period as unrestricted support in the year of the gift.
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The Organization reports contributions of land, buildings or equipment as unrestricted support,
unless a donor places explicit restriction on their use. Contributions of cash or other assets that
must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as temporarily restricted support and
reclassified to unrestricted net assets when the assets are acquired and placed in service.

The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total,
but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a
presentation in conformity with GAAP. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction
with the Organization's June 30, 2016 financial statements, from which the summarized information
was derived.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
I

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less, excluding assets limited as to use.

The Organization has cash deposits in major financial institutions which may exceed federal
depository insurance limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts.
Management believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with respect to these accounts.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for uncollectible accounts. In evaluating the
collectibility of accounts receivable, the Organization monitors the amount of actual cash collected
during each month against the Organization's outstanding patient accounts receivable balances,
as well as the aging of balances. The Organization analyzes its past history and identifies trends
for each of its major payer sources of revenue to estimate the appropriate allowance for
uncollectible accounts and provision for bad debts. Management, as well as the Finance
Committee of the Organization, regularly reviews the aging and collection rate of major payer
sources.

Investments

Investments in marketable securities and debt instruments with readily determined market values
are carried at fair value. Fair values are based on quoted market prices, if available, or estimated
using quoted market prices for similar securities.

Dividends, interest, net realized and unrealized gains (losses) arising from investments are
reported as follows;

•  Increases (decreases) in permanently restricted net assets if the terms of the
gift require that they be maintained with the corpus of a permanent
endowment fund;
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•  Increases (decreases) in temporarily restricted net assets if the terms of the
gift or state law impose restrictions on the use of the allocated investment
income (loss); and

•  Increases (decreases) in unrestricted net assets in all other cases.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost, if purchased, or at estimated fair value at date of
donation in the case of gifts, less accumulated depreciation. The Organization's policy is to
capitalize assets greater than $5,000, while minor maintenance and repairs are charged to
expense as incurred. Depreciation is recorded using the straight-line method over the following
estimated lives as follows;

Furniture & Equipment 3-10 years
Buildings and improvements 15-50 years
Computer equipment and software 3-10 years
Vehicles 5 years

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the statements of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been
allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue-Code. There was no unrelated business income tax incurred by the Organization for the
years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. Management has evaluated the Organization's tax positions
and concluded the Organization has maintained its tax-exempt status, does not have any
significant unrelated business income and has taken no uncertain tax positions that require
adjustment to, or disclosure within, the accompanying financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2016 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current
year's presentation.

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S.
GAAP, management has considered transactions or events occurring through October 25, 2017,
which is the date that the financial statements were available to be issued.
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2. Program Service Fees and Concentrations of Credit Risk

Program service fees are charged at established rates and recognized as services are rendered.
The State of New Hampshire has implemented payment reform in which certain patients covered
under Medicaid were transitioned to coverage under a managed care system. Discounts,
allowances and other arrangements for services provided at other than established rates are
recorded as an offset to prograrri service fees. Net revenues from managed care represented
approximately 74% and 65% of the Organization's net program service fees for 2017 and 2016,
respectively. Net revenues from the Medicaid program accounted for approximately 17% and
20% of the Organization's net program service fees for 2017 and 2016, respectively.

An estimated breakdown of program service fees, net of the provision for bad debt, capitation
adjustments and contractual allowances, recognized in 2017 and 2016 fromjhose major sources
is as follows:

2017 2016

Private pay $ 1,070,603 $ 874.132

Commercial insurance 322,958 290,898

Medicaid 2,546,817 2,781,132

Medicare 1,301,991 1,408,343

Other payers 438,909 393,704

Managed Care 12.886.961 9.705.698

18.568.239 15.453.907*

Less: Contractual allowances (3,092,460) (3,437,775)

Capitation adjustments (3,452,269) (1,289,796)

Provision for bad debt (1.106.441) (601.695)

(7.651.170) (5.329.266)

Program service fees, net $ 10.917.069 $ 10.124.641

The increase in bad debt expense in 2017 as compared to 2016 is primarily due to collection
trends.
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The Organization grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are insured under
third-party payer agreements. Following is a summary of gross accounts receivable by funding
source as of June 30;

2017 2016

Private pay 61 % 77 %

Blue.Cross/Blue Shield 1 1

Medicaid 23 7

Medicare 5 4

Other 3 1

Managed care 7 10

100 % 100 %

3. Investments

Investments, which are reported at fair value, consist of the following at June 30:

2017 '2016

Common stocks

Mutual funds

U.S. Treasury bonds
Corporate bonds
Mortgage backed securities

$ 558,516 $

718,546
343,841
24,062
87.951

488,444

704,816
294,900
58,122
122,549

$  1.732.916 $ 1.668.831

The Organization's investments are subject to various risks, such as interest rate, credit and
overall market volatility, which may substantially impact the values of investments at any given
time.

4. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 820, Fair
Value Measurement, defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in an orderly transaction between market
participants and also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the
use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value.
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The fair value hierarchy within ASC Topic 820 distinguishes three levels of inputs that may be
utilized when measuring fair value:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Organization's assets
measured art fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30:

Investments

Common stock

Mutual funds funds

U.S. Treasury bonds
Corporate bonds
Mortgage-backed securities

Level 1

$  558,516 $
718,546
343,841

87.951

2017

Level 2

24,062

Total

$  558,516
718,546
343,841
24,062

87.951

$ 1.708.854 $ 24.062 $ 1.732.916

Investments

Common stock

Mutual funds

U.S. Treasury bonds
Corporate bonds
Mortgage-backed securities

2016

Level 1 Level 2 Total

j  488.444 $  - $ 488,444

704,816 - 704,816

294,900 - 294,900
- 58,122 58,122

122.549 - 122.549

$ 1.610.709 $ 58.122 $ 1.668.831

The fair value for Level 2 assets is primarily based on market prices of comparable or underlying
securities, interest rates, and credit risk, using the market approach for the Organization's
investments.
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5. Property And Equipment

I

Property and equipment consists of the following:

2017 2016

Land, buildings and improvements $ 4,983,891 $ 4,904,730
Furniture and equipment 263,330 232,803
Computer equipment 230,567 209,699
Software 660,917 660,917
Vehicles 32.766 32.766

6,171,471 6,040,915

Less accumulated depreciation , (3.341.102) (3.095,208)

Property and equipment, net $ 2.830.369 $ 2.945.707

6. Endowment

The Organization's endowment primarily consists of funds established for certain programs
provided by the Organization. Its endowment includes both donor-restricted endowment funds and
funds designated by the Board of Directors to function as endowments. As required by U.S. GAAP,
net assets associated with endowment funds. Including funds designated by the Board of Directors
to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of
donor-imposed restrictions.

Interpretation of Relevant Law

The Organization has interpreted the State of New Hampshire Uniform Prudent Management of
Institutional Funds Act (the Act), which became effective July 1, 2008, as requiring the preservation
of the contributed value of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations
to the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, the Organization classifies as permanently
restricted net assets (1) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (2) the
original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and (3) accumulations to the
permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift
instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. If the donor-restricted endowment

assets earn investment returns beyond the amount necessary to maintain the endowment assets'
real value, that excess is available for appropriation and, therefore, classified as temporarily
restricted net assets until appropriated by the Board of Trustees for expenditure. Funds designated
by the Board of Directors to function as endowments are classified as unrestricted net assets.
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In accordance with the Act, the Organization considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

(1) The duration and preservation of the fund;
(2) The purposes of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund;
(3) General economic conditions:
(4) the possible effect of inflation and deflation;
(5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments;
(6) Other resources of the organization; and
(7) The investment policies of the organization.

Return Obiectives and Risk Parameters

The Organization has adopted investment policies, approved by the Board of Directors, for
endowment assets that attempt to maintain the purchasing power of those endowment assets over
the long term. Accordingly, the investment process seeks to achieve an after-cost total real rate of
return, including investment income as well as capital appreciation, which exceeds the annual
distribution with acceptable levels of risk. Endowment assets are invested in a well-diversified
asset mix, which includes equity and debt securities, that is intended to result in a consistent
inflation-protected rate of. return that has sufficient liquidity to make an annual distribution of
accumulated interest and dividend income to be reinvested or used as needed, while growing the
funds if possible. Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount. Investment risk Is
measured in terms of the total endowment fund; investment assets and allocation between asset

classes and strategies are managed to reduce the exposure of the fund to unacceptable levels of
risk.

Spending Policy

Currently, the Organization does not have a written spending policy approved by its Board of
Directors. Historically, the Organization has appropriated for distribution the accumulated interest
and dividend income on the investment funds. The Organization considers the long-term expected
return on its investment assets, the nature and duration of the individual endowment funds, many
of which must be maintained in perpetuity because of donor restrictions, and the possible effects of
inflation.
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Endovimient Composition and Changes in Endowment

The endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of June 30. 2017, were as follows:

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Donor-restricted endowment funds $ $  129,553 $  120.244 $  249,797

Board-designated endowment funds 1.526.011 1.526.011

S 1.526.011 $  129.553 S  120.244 £ 1.775.808

The changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2017, were as follows:

Unrestricted

Temporarily
Restricted

Permanently
Restricted Total

Endowment net assets, June 30, 2016 1,539,326 71,810 98,593 1,709,729

Investment return

Investment income

Net appreciation
Investment fees

37,416

67,933
(13.867)

5,219
9,476
(1.934)

751

1,363

(278)

43,386
78,772
(16.079)

Total investment return 91,482 12,761 1,836 106,079

Appropriation of endowment assets for
expenditure (40,000) - - (40,000)

Reclassifications of net assets (64.797) 44.982 19.815

Endowment net assets, June 30, 2017 £ 1.526.011 $  129.553 £  120.244 £1.775.808
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The endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of June 30, 2016, were as follows:

Unrestricted

Temporarily
Restricted

Permanently
Restricted Total

Donor-restricted endowment funds $ $  71,810 $  98,593 $ 170,403

Board-designated endowment funds 1.539.326 ■  _ 1.539.326

$ 1.539.326 $  71.810 $  98.593 $ 1.709.729

The changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2016,were as follows:

Unrestricted

Temporarily
Restricted

Permanently
Restricted Total

Endowment net assets. June 30, 2015 1,729,847 63,610 98,593 1,892,050

Contributions

Investment return

Investment income

Net appreciation
Investment fees

45,244
19,904

(14.940)

5,121

2,803

1,104

(828)

-

5,121

48,047
21,008
(15.768)

Total investment return 50,208 3,079 - 53,287

Appropriation of endowment assets for
expenditure (240.729) (240.729)

Endowment net assets, June 30, 2016 1.539.326 71.810 98.593 1.709.729

In 2017, the Organization reviewed historical data relating to permanently restricted net assets and
due to changes in interpretation of original gift records, reclassified net appreciation from
unrestricted net assets to temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net assets.
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7. Debt Oblioations

Line of Credit

The Organization maintains a $1,000,000 revolving line of credit with ID Bank, collateralized by a
mortgage on real property and substantially all business assets, carrying a variable interest rate of
Prime plus 1.0% adjusted daily with a floor rate of 4.00% (5.25% at June 30, 2017). Interest is
payable monthly. The line of credit had an outstanding balance of $248,224 and $1,000,000 at
June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The line of credit agreement has a maturity date of January
31,2018.

Notes Payable

The Organization had the following notes payable:

2017 2016

4.25% note payable to TO Bank in monthly principal and interest
payments of $8,133 through January 2019, at which time a
balloon payment for the remaining principal is due;
collateralized by mortgaged property.

Note payable to TO Bank in monthly principal and interest
payments of $6,016 through July 2020, at which time a
balloon payment for the remaining principal is due. Interest
rate at the Federal Home Loan Bank Boston Five Year

Classic Advance Rate plus 2.65% (4.81% at June 30,
2017);collateralized by mortgaged property. The note is a
participating loan with New Hampshire Higher Educational
and Health Facilities Authority.

Less: unamortized deferred issuance costs

Total notes payable

The scheduled maturities on notes payable are as follows:

$  946,599 $ 997,953

697.393

1,643,992
f2.878^

734.600

1,732,553

(3.725)

$ 1.641.114 $ 1.728.828

2018

2019

2020

2021

$ 98,870

930,243
43,991
570,888

Cash paid for interest approximates interest expense.

TD Bank requires that the Organization meet certain financial covenants. The Organization was in
compliance with covenants as of June 30, 2017.
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8. Commitments and Contingencies

Contract Pavables

At June 30, 2015, the Organization had accrued $225,000 in contract payables related to a
managed care contract that went into effect during fiscal year 2015. Activity under that managed
care contract continued into fiscal year 2016. In 2016, the Organization settled its cumulative
activity with the managed care provider and. as a result, accrued an amount due to the managed
care provider of $429,004 as of June 30, 2016. Amounts due to the managed care provider were
paid in inkallments as outlined in the settlement agreernent through December 2016 and are
recorded within accounts receivable in the accompanying statement of financial position. There
were no such amounts owed under the managed care contract as of June 30, 2017.

Caoital and Qperatino Leases

The Organization rents additional housing space in Nashua, NH to be used for patient housing by
the housing program. The Organization receives subsidies for reimbursement of expenses per a
contract with the State of New Hampshire to offset expenses not covered by patient
reimbursement for rent. These leases were fully expired as of July 1. 2016. Total rent expense
under these agreements amounted to $68,900 for the year June 30, 2016, respectively.

Rent expense $12,079 for various equipment was incurred for both the years ended June.30, 2017
and 2016, under noncancellable operating lease agreements covering a term greater than one
year.

During 2015, the Organization entered into a capital lease arrangement for computers, which calls
for monthly principal and interest payments of $1,995 through April 2018. During 2016, the
Organization entered into another capital lease arrangement for computers, which calls for monthly
principal and interest payments of $1,246 through November 2018. The net carrying value of
assets held under capital leases was $35,529 and $70,613 at June 30, 2017 and 2016,
respectively.

Future minimum lease payments required under noncancellable lease agreements for the next
three years ending June 30 are as follows:

Operating Capital
Leases Lease

2018 $ 12,079 $ 34,898
2019 12,079 6,229
2020 9.380 ;

$  33.538 41,127

Less: amount representing interest (3.823)

$  37,304
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Malpractice Insurance

The Organization insures its medical malpractice risks on a claims-made basis. At June 30, 2017,
there were no known malpractice claims outstanding which, in the opinion of management, will be
settled for amounts in excess of insurance coverage nor are there any unasserted claims or
incidents known to management which require loss accrual. The Organization Intends to renew
coverage on a claims-made basis and anticipates that such coverage will be available.

>

9. Tax Deferred Annuity Plan

The Organization maintains a 403(b) employer-sponsored retirement plan. Employees are eligible
to participate as of the date of hire. The Organization offers a match of dollar-for-dollar up to 4% of
annual salary. In order to be eligible for the match, an employee must work or earn a year of
service, which is defined as at least 1,000 hours during the 12-month period immediately following
date of hire. In April 2014, the employer match was suspended. There was no expense associated
with this plan for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016.
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Leslie Mendenhall

Objective
To serve those in need in my Community, utilizing the education and experience I
have gained working in the Human Services and Criminal Justice Fields.

Experience

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center February 2015 to present

Case Manager Hlllsborough County North Drug Court

■Meet with all clients to confinn compliance with the program, set and assist in setting and achieving
goals.
■ Report all pertanent information to the Drug Court team for weekly meeting with the judge.
■ Complete uranalysis testing and reports 2 to 3 times per week per client
■ Facilitate Life Skills class as well as CBT based criminal thinking class Thinking for a Change.
■ Support treatment team in the recovery of the clients.
■Foster community partnerships.
■ Assist team in whatever tasks needed.

Southern NH Services January 2005 to March 2015

Nashua Housing Coordinator
■ Manage low Income elderly housing facility. Attend to resident needs, complete yearly recertiflcation, interview
and certify new applicants from the wait list. Complete monthly accounting and maintain operations of housing
facility. Work with outside community to bring areas of interest to the residents.
■ Supervise and support housing managers elderly housing sites, as well as housing for homeless women in
Nashua. Assist in the operation of housing for Homeless men in recovery. Complete annual reviews with staff.
■ Supervise and support the maintenance staff in Nashua. Oversee all daily maintenance and emergency work on
buildings. Prioritize and assign work that needs to be completed for residents as well as outreach offices.
Complete annual reviews with staff.
■ Ensure conformance to all federal and local agency rules and regulations.

Case Manager Academy Program - Nashua/Manchester
■Interview and assess clients, using the Bio-Psych Social, applying to the Nashua Academy for allemative
sentencing Complete reports for the court on client history and treatment recommendations. Attend sentencing
and probation violation hearing
■ Complete monthly reports submitted to the NH Department of Corrections.
■ Collabwated with NH State Department of Corrections, Hillsboro County Attorney's Office, NH Public
Defender Office, as well as local treatment facilities for Alcohol and Drug use and mental health facilities.
■Meet weekly with clients for case management and life skills class. Work with clients toward rehabilitation fixjm
substance abuse as well as criminal life style. Work with clients to decrease recidivism.
■ Performed weekly drug tests with clients, packed and shipped test to NH State Drug Lab
■Comply with state regulations regarding probation and parole.

Pre-Placement Substance Abuse Counselor
■Met with clients from probation, parole and pre-sentencing regarding substance abuse treatment.
Completed assessment testing and diagnosed substance abuse disorders in accordance to the DSM-



IV Criteria. Diagnostic testing included SASSI, MAST and a complete bio-psych social assessment.
■Made treatment recommendations based on testing results. This was to include inpatient, out
patient, Intensive Outpatient and self-help meetings.
■Completed one on one counseling sessions with clients and conducted group counseling sessions.
Taught educational skill classes, such as life skills classes. Worked with women in a knit to quit
group.

Housing Assistant Mary's House
■Completed intake and assess applicants. Completed quarterly reviews of goal plans with current
residents
■Completed annual signing of leases with residents.
■Completed evictions when necessary.
■Complete monthly accounting and assisted in the operations of housing facility. Worked with local
agency to assist the residents in the best manner possible.
■Assisted residents when they needed a direction in how to accomplish life changing tasks
■Assisted with monthly house meetings that would bring new knowledge to residents.
■Assisted with bringing a woman's empowerment program to the house.

State of New Hampshire 2012 to present

Adult Parole Board
■Prepare for those inmates who are scheduled for parole hearings and help determine their eligibility
for parole. Those being granted parole, will set conditions they must follow and those who are denied
are infonned what they need to do to achieve their goal
■Do.heaiings for Parole revocation. Those who have been brought back to the prison due to violation
will go before the board to determine any sanction for them to serve.
■Be available to sign warrants for parole officers and consult with officers as needed.

NH State House of Representatives 1999 to 2000
■Served as a member of the Transportation Committee
■Voted on pending legislation

Education

Granite State College
Bachelor of Science In Behavioral Science
Graduated Magna^Cum Laude

Springfield College
Manchester NH
Master of Science in Human Services

Volunteer Services

2009 - 2014 - City of Nashua, NH Review and Comment Committee
2009 - Volunteer Committee Member
2010- to 2014 Chairperson of the Review and Comment Commission



HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY ADULT DRUG COURT

HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT - SOUTHERN DISTRICT

JOB DESCRIPTION: DRUG COURT COORDINATOR

SUMMARY: Under the general direction of the Drug Court Judge, the Drug Court Coordinator
is continuously responsible to coordinate the Dnjg Court Program and perform related duties as
assigned.

SPECIFIC RESPONSIBILITIES: The following duties are normal for this position. The omission
of specific statements of the duties does not exclude them from the position if the work is
similar, related, or a logical assignment for this position. Other duties may be required and
assigned.

Grant admmistration:

Coordinate the management of federal, state, and local grants and donations dedicated to drug
court

Submit budget and expenditure requests as is appropriate
Research and prepare all potential grants, donations and other sources of funding for drug court
at the direction of the team

Maintain data collection and prepare reports as they relate to grant requirements
Liaison:

Schedule and prepare agendas to assist in the facilitation of regular drug court tearh meetings or
meetings with other professionals related to the drug court program
Collect on-going Information and prepare and disseminate weekly participant compliance reports
for review by drug court team

Monitor payment of dmg court fees, fines and restitution
Prepare weekly requirement reports for participants
Attend weekly drug court team meetings and court sessions
Act as the primary liaison between the court, prosecution, defense, treatment, department of
corrections, and other partners related to the drug court by facilitating and maintaining
communication between the drug court team members

Prepare and present drug court Information to members of the public
General administration:

Coordinate, schedule and participate in drug court policy meetings
Monitor the quality of services from providers and ensure compliance with the goals and
objectives of the drug court program and compliance with the "Ten Key Components" and best
practices of drug courts
Be familiar with current research and principles of successful drug courts
Assist in the development of goals, objectives and strategies for the program
Maintain and update written policies and procedures for the program
Develop appropriate program brochures, handbooks, clinical papenwork, literature, videos or
press releases
Other

Maintain professional conduct, ethical behavior and confidentiality as required of Court
personnel
May be required to travel in and out of state to attend meetings, conferences and trainings

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS FOR POSITION: Bachelor's degree with a major in criminal
justice, social services, or a related field with three to five years of related experience or
equivalent combination of education and experience: knowledge of the ten key drug court
components, evidence based principles of substance abuse assessment and treatment, and the
criminal justice system; ability to work with a multi-disciplinary team and community leaders on a
professional, unbiased basis; excellent administrative, written and oral communications;
excellent organizational skills; ability to work independently.

This position Is contingent on continued grant or replacement funding.



Greater Nashua Mental Health Center at Community Council
JOB DESCRIPTION

Position: Drug Court Case Manager Department: Substance Abuse Services
Reports to: Director of Outpatient Services/Clinical Supervisor of Drug Court

SUMMARY: Under the general direction of the Director of Outpatient Servuces, the Drug Court Case
Manager is responsible for direct supervision of the drug court participant's compliance with the
program, providing community linkages and referrals to appropriate agencies, and monitoring the day-to-
day activities and home environment of the participant. In addition to internally reporting to Director of
Outpatient Services, also reports to Superior Court Drug Court Judge.

SPECIFIC RESPONSIBILITIES: The following duties are normal for this position. The omission of
specific statements of the duties does not exclude them from the position if the work is similar, related, or
a logical assignment for this position. Other duties may be required and assigned.

Monitor participants placed in drug court by the Superior Court throughout the court process
Advise participants of program requirements/conditions
Complete Case Management Needs Assessment on each participant enrolled in Drug Court
Update records of defendants' residences, employment, or other situations as needed
Collect and administers urine, breath or other samples for drug/alcohol testing and interprets test results
and reports the results to the court
Report violations of compliance and any non-compliance to the courts
Attend weekly Drug Court staffings and court sessions
Testify at court hearings regarding violations, policies, procedures or other issues as directed
Coordinate with other treatment providers and monitors attendance and compliance with all aspects of
treatment ^
Monitor court-imposed sanctions and compliance
Identify and maintain contact information for local resources (i.e., mental health, drug rehabilitation,
employment, housing, etc.)
Make necessary referrals to external resources and documents attendance, etc.
Coordinate participant services to avoid overlap or redundancy
Utilize appropriate boundaries and professionalism while working with a diverse population
Keep appropriate records and documentation as outlined in agency policies and procedures.
Attend regularly scheduled staff meetings, inservice education and various other related staff activities
Exhibit interest and motivation for maintaining and improving quality of services as well as own
individual skills and professional development

Maintain professional conduct and ethical behavior as in GNMHC's policies and procedures
Comply with all facility, personnel, safety, infection control and security policies
Participate on agency committees as assigned by supervisor
Be familiar with the department and agency policies and procedures and has a knowledge of other
services provided within the agency
Any other duties and responsibilities consistent with the employee's education, training or experience
deemed necessary to enhance the functioning of GNMHC

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS FOR POSITION: Bachelor's degree in Social Work, Criminal
Justice, or related field; supplemented by one (1) year previous experience and/or training involving case
management, law enforcement, probation, the criminal justice system, and/or court procedures; or any
equivalent combination of education, training and experience which provides the requisite knowledge,
skills and abilities for this Job. Must possess and maintain a valid New Hampshire driver's license.

4/8/15

CLW



Greater Nashua Mental Health Center at Community Council

JOB DESCRIPTION

Position: Drug Court Therapist Department: Substance Abuse Services
Reports to: Director of Outpatient Services/Clinical Supervisor of Drug Court

SUMMARY: Under the general direction of the Director of Outpatient Servuces, the Drug Court
Therapist is responsible for the screening and assessment of Drug Court participants as well as
providing of Individual, group, and family counseling.

SPECIFIC RESPONSIBILITIES: The following duties are normal for this position. The omission of
specific statements of the duties does not exclude them from the position if the work is similar, rejated, or
a logical assignment for this position. Other duties may be required and assigned.

Perform client screening and assessment functions necessary to complete admission into the treatment
program

Utilize American Society of Addition Medicine (ASAM) criteria to make recommendations for level of
services

Deliver treatment using evidence based practices
Assist clients in development of individual treatment plans and monitor their progress
Counsel clients in individual, group, and family formats
Maintain complete, timely, confidential and accurate treatment records as outlined in agency policies and
procedures
Ensure appropriate caseload utilization
Act as a client advocate to agencies and persons when appropriate
Respond to client crises and emergencies as needed
Collect and administer urine, breath or other samples for drug/alcohol testing and interprets test results
and reports the results to the Drug Court Case Manager and/or court
Report violations of compliance and any non-compliance to the Drug Court Case Manager and/or court
Attend weekly Drug Court staffings and court sessions

Testify at court hearings regarding violations, policies, procedures or other issues as directed
Coordinate with other treatment providers

Utilize appropriate boundaries and professionalism while working with a diverse population
Attend regularly scheduled staff meetings, inservice education and various other related staff activities
Exhibit interest and motivation for maintaining and improving quality of services as well as own
individual skills and professional development
Maintain professional conduct and ethical behavior as in GNMHC's policies and procedures
Comply with all facility, personnel, safety, infection control and security policies
Participate on agency committees as assigned by supervisor
Be familiar with the department and agency policies and procedures and has a knowledge of other
services provided within the agency
Any other duties and responsibilities consistent with the employee's education, training or experience
deemed necessary to enhance the functioning of GNMHC

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS FOR POSITION: Clinical licensure in a human services field (e.g.
LICSW, LMHC, LMFT, LADC etc.) or a Master's degree in human services from an accredited
institution and within one (I) year of eligibility for licensure; knowledge and experience in the treatment
of substance abuse; ability to develop rapport with individuals diagnosed with substance use disorders;
abilility to apply organizational management skills and maintain self and client discipline; ability to
prepare and maintain required documentation.

4/8/15
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KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services
Office of the Commissioner

Agency Name:
Name of Contract:

Greater Nashua Meotal Health Center

Clinical Services - Hillsborough County Drug Court Expansion

£^\C.ontract)^:!^
To Be Hired.Onjq Cotirt Coordinator (1 FTE) S33.750 1X.00%;s^^a$33i7.50:00>:

To Be Hired,Therapist (1 FTE) $37,500 100.00% 4?^i$37J500;00:

To Be Hired. Case Manaoer (1 FTE) $30,000 100.00%!^ag>$3o:ooo;oo:

Leslie Mendenhall. Case Manager (.5 FTE) $15,000 100.00%!;g^i$.16f00Qi00:

Craiq Amoth. Executive Director $0 0.00%

Tonv Paradiso. Actino Chief Ooeralino Officer $0 0.00% ;irm^iS-:i!C^:;$0i00-

ItOTAL salaries (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request per SFY) i ;'::^)^;$1.16>250;00

t^uRSsMneRBB
To Be Hired.Drug Court Coordinator (1 FTE) $45,000 100.00%

To Be Hired,Therapist (1 FTE) $50,000 100.00%'

To Be Hired. Case Manager (1 FTE) $40,000 100.00% ®jtt§fi«.0iooo;oo

Leslie Mendenhall, Case Manager (.5 FTE) $20,000 100.00% Sj^^2OlQ0P;oO

Craiq Amoth. E^^cutive Director $0 0.00%

Tonv Paradiso. Actino Chief Ooeratinq Officer $0 0.00%IS^»St^l^;oq

ItOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages. Line Item 1 of Budget request per SFY) »S^:i.55!0:00:00'

BW
To Be Hired,Drug Court Coordinator (1 FTE) $45,000 100.00%

To Be Hired,Therapist (1 FTE) $50,000 100.00% I5fSg4ft$50iQ00:00

To Be Hired. Case Manager (1 FTE) $40,000 100.00%|g^j3»iSd0!Q0Q.'0O

P  Mendenhall, Case Manager (.5 FTE) $20,000 100.00% 5ft2SS$20!000'00

Craiq Amoth. Executive Director $0 0.00%BSEmjeseoioo

Tonv Peradisn Adino Chief Ooeratina Officer $0 0.00% mffiStS^OiOO

ItOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request per SFY) |)SU$Si$.15.5rooo:00-

SAdffMmirotiwK
•J.H::. Personnol-vJSii

To Be Hired.Drug Court Coordinator (1 FTE) $11,250 100.00%.?^t^!»:m225o:oo

To Be Hired.Therapist (1 FTE) $12,500 100.00% i^^5P:$.12l50Q:OO

To Be Hired. Case Manager (l FTE) $10,000 100.00% r;i^>X'5?:{$io.-ooo:oo

1 ftslie Mendenhall, Case Manager (.5 FTE) $5,000 100.00% -•:«^<$5!000:00

Craiq Amoth. Execufive Director $0 0.00% r-.ir»:.m$o;oo

Tonv Paradiso Actino Chief Ooeratinq Officer $0 0.00% v"^-\t5r?^$0:00

TOTAL SAI-ARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request per SFY) •>is:^i$38;750.00
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Commissioner
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Commissioner

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES

Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services

105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271-6738 1-800-804-0909

Fax:603-271-6105 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.<Ihhs.nh.gov
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October 28. 2015

Her Excellency. Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. NH 03301

(Keiroaoi) \/c.

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services,
to enter into retroactive, sole source agreements with the vendors below, for the provision of clinical
and evaluation services in support of the Hillsborough County - South's Drug Court expansion effort, in
an amount not to exceed $851,622. effective October 1, 2015 through Septemt)er 30, 2018, upon
Governor and Executive Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds supporting this request are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2016,
and are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2017 upon Fiscal Committee approval, and In
2018 and 2019 upon legislative approval of the next biennial budget and continued appropriation of
funds in the future operating budget, with authority to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years
through the Budget Office, without further approval from Governor and Executive Council, if needed
and justified.

05-95-49-491510-5090 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC. BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS. TREATMENT
DRUG COURT GRANT

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center at Community Council
100 West Pearl Street, Nashua. NH 03060

Vendor#154112

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number Amount

2016 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 49155090 $184,277.50

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 49155090 $243,870.00

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 49155090 $243,870.00

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 49155090 $ 59,592.50

Price Limitation $731,610.00

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. dba C
501 South Street. Bow, NH

Vendor #161611 -B0(

ommunity Health Institute
03304

D1

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number Amount

2016 102-500731 Contracts for Program Seoiflces 49155090 $ 31.383.00

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sen/ices 49155090 $ 40,004.00

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 49155090 $ 40.004.00

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 49155090 $ 8.621.00

Price Limitation $120,012.00
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Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of 2

EXPLANATION

This request to retroactively enter into two sole source agreements is made in response to the
Department's receipt of additional Federal funding to support'the efforts of the Hillsborough County
South Drug Court. In September, the Department received a three (3) year grant to expand substance
abuse treatment capacity within this specific Drug Court. The Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration grant is specifically designed to work with the Drug Court's existing community
partners. The grant application required the support of the current community partners, including the
two primary contractors already working with this Drug Court, the Greater Nashua Mental Health Center
and the Community Health Institute.

These agreements, combined with the existing resources that support the Hillsborough County
South Drug Court, will allow more individuals to be served, obtain treatment, and to pursue a successful
path to recovery and rehabilitation. The services to be provided include individual and group therapy,
the use of specially designed, evidence-based curriculums, and evaluation services to assess and
ensure the continued effectiveness of the model and the success of program participants. This model
of treatment has been proven to improve recovery, reduce recidivism with respect to criminal activity,
and reduce the need for incarceration for individuals experiencing addiction.

The agreements contain renewal language that allows the Department the right to renew the
agreements for up to three (3) additional years, subject to the continued availability of Federal funds
and satisfactory performance of services.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, the Department would be
not be in compliance with the Federal regulations pertaining to its grant award, and additional
individuals would not receive these highly effective services - leaving them to continue their struggle
with addiction and their involvement with New Hampshire's criminal justice system.

>

Area Served: Hillsborough County - South

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the US Department of Health and Human Services,
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Sen/ices Administration, SAMHSA Treatment Drug Courts,
Catalog of Federal and Domestic Assistance Number, 93.243, Federal Award Identification Number
(FAIN)# TI026092.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Kathleen A. Dunn, MPH
Associate Commissioner

Approved by;
Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
.  in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Subject: Qinical Services - Hillsboitmch County Drug Court Expansion

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT ^
The Slate of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 Stale Agency Name
Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Community Based Care Services
Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center at Community Council

1.4 Contractor Address

100 West Pearl Street

Nashua, NH 03060

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603.402.1586

1.6 Account Number

05-95-49-491510-5090

1.7 Completion Date

September30, - fv.
Zfl/g

1.8 Price Limitation

$731,610.00

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Eric Borrin, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9558

1.1 L^ntractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

etAA.tr , C(?c>

1.13 Acknowledgement: Statcof AJ H .County of

, before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

JSeall
o!

/  ̂ nancy V.TRASK,NotaryPi«c
^  J MyOofnmte8tonexplre8April27,2016

,1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

1.14 State Agency Signature

TY\jojJ)xi Date:
1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

11%. "L l\) I Vn A
fNepwVA To I ot\Pr^pv\rT\

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if^pplicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

By:^ Jn:

mm
1.18 Approval by the Gov^or and ExccutiiifJCouncil \{i/\applicahle)

By: ~ On:

Page I of 4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The Stale of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become efTecilve on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

payment.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page 2

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor

shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any^part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with ail the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide ail
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the Stale's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(•'Event of E>efault"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or

8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contr^tor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the dale of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the Slate may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.
9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
tenpination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be goven>ed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other enwluntents provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,OOOper occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificatefs)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificatefs) of
insurance for all rcncwal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The ccrtificatefs) of
Insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificale(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers' Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
Slates Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given In blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only afier approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the panics and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the panies to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any pany.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The panies hereto do not intend to
benefit any third panies and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the Interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of

this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain In full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deenred an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Clinical Services: Hillsborough County Drug Court Supporting Services

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Services to be Delivered

1.1 General Services

The Contractor shall provide assessment, treatment, case management, recovery
support and overall program coordination services in support of the expansion of the
Hillsborough County Drug Court Program (HCDC), pursuant to a grant received by the
Department from the US Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration's (SAMHSA), under the Grants to Expand Substance Abuse Treatment
Capacity In Adult and Family Drug Courts (TI-15-002 Individual Grant Awards). The
Department's applicable grant application abstract wll serve as a guiding document for
all services and responsibilities of the Contractor, with respect to this grant award, not
otherwise described within this agreement.

The Contractor shall work collaboratively with the following entities and organizations
participating in the HCDC:

•  Southern Hillsborough County Superior Court;
•  Southern Hillsborough County Attorney's Office;
•  NH Public Defender's Program;

•  NH Department of Corrections - Probation/Parole Department;
•  Community Health Institute/JSI; and
•  Nashua Police^Department.

The Contractor's responsibility in the expansion of the HCDC includes but is not limited
to:

•  Early, continuous and intense treatment;
•  Mandatory random drug testing;
•  Distribution of court-approved incentives; and
•  Other rehabilitative services.

1.2 Assessment and Treatment Planning Services

1.2.1 For each identified candidate to participate in the program, the Contractor shall
utilize evidence-based tools to provide a comprehensive picture of each
offender's criminogenic, substance use, and mental health risks and needs.
The tools used shall include at minimum: the ASI and the Mental Health
Screening Form - III (MHSF-III).

1.2.2 For individuals accepted into the program, the Contractor shall engage the
individual in a more thorough bio-psycho-soclal assessment with a clinician
familiar with both addiction and mental health evaluation and treatment. The
clinician will review the results of the screenings referenced in 1.2.1, gather
more information, If needed, about personal and family background, criminal
and legal involvement, work history, medical problems, drug use, mental health
and treatment history.

The Contractor shall utilize the American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM)
criteria for service and treatment planning, and the Stages of Change

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center Exhibit A - Scope of Services Contractor Initials:
October 2015 ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Clinical Services: Hillsborough County Drug Court Supporting Services

Exhibit A

Readiness and treatment Eagerness Scale - Version 8 (SOCRATES 8) in the
assessment process.

To identify and address the impact of violence and trauma, the Contractor shall
screen program participants with the Life Events Checklist (LEC) upon
admission, and shall use the Post Traumatic Stress Disorder (PTSD) Check
List - 5 (PCL-5) - a self-reporting rating scale for PTSD.

1.2.3 The Contractor shall develop a comprehensive and individualized treatment
plan for each program participant that includes interventions and therapeutic
approaches that are evidence-based and include at minimum, the following or
an equivalent thereof;

•  Moral Reconation Therapy (MRT):
•  Mapping-Enhanced Counseling (MEC);
•  Thinking for a Change (T4C);
• Motivational Interviewing (Mi);
•  Cognitive Behavioral Therapy (CBT);
•  and Medication Assisted Therapy (MAT).

1.2.3.1 The following six dimensions will be addressed in the development of
the treatment plan;

• Acute Intoxication and/or Withdrawal Potential;

•  Biomedical Conditions and Complications;

•  Emotional, Behavioral, or Cognitive Problems arxJ Complications;
•  Readiness to Change;

•  Relapse, Continued Use, or Continued Problem Potential; and
•  Recovery Environment.

1.2.4 For those individuals whose assessments indicate a need for a different level of
care than that provided by the Contractor, the Contractor shall work with the
individual to obtain ASAM Level III or IV services from other organizations,
including Keystone Hall. Phoenix House, Famum Center, and Hampstead
Hospital. ,

1.3 Treatment and Recovery Services

1.3.1 The Contractor shall provide, as appropriate, substance abuse treatment
services to participants accepted into the program, including:

•  ASAM Level I Outpatient Services;

•  ASAM Level II Intensive Outpatient Services;
•  MRT, includir>g Group and individual Counseling;
•  Individual Counseling;

•  MEC;

• Motivational interviewing;

•  Cognitive-Behavioral Therapy; and
•  Medication-Assisted Therapy.

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center Exhibit A - Scope of Services Contractor InKlals: ̂  A"
October2015 \i iV—vC
Page 2 of 7 Date: ^—i



New Hampshire Department off Health and Human Services
Clinical Services: Hillsborough County Drug Court Supporting Services

Exhibit A

1.3.2 The following curriculums and interventions shall be utilized by the Contractor
In the treatment of program participants:

•  Getting Motivated to Change
•  Mapping the Journey: A Treatment Guidebook
•  Understanding and Reducing Angry Feelings
•  Unlock Your Thinking. Open Your Mind
•  Time Out! For Me

•  Building Social Network
•  Mapping Your Reentry Plan: Heading Home
•  Thinking for a Change

1.3.3 The Contractor shall develop relapse prevention plans for each program
participant.

1.3.4 The Contractor shall conduct random urine analysis for each participant,
including conducting confirmation testing if an individual denies use yet the
result was positive or If there is another need for further information.

1.3.5 The Contractor shall provide medication-assisted treatment (naltrexone,
suboxone) to uninsured participants, as contractual funding, or as other non
contractual funding, may support.

1.3.6 The Contractor shall ensure that all treatment services are provided by
culturally competent staff meml)ers. and that all treatment interventions are
delivered in either the participant's primary language or through the use of an
interpreter.

Treatment services shall be provided to gay. lesbian, bisexual and transgender
individuals with similarly sensitive and respectful approaches.

1.3.7 The Contractor shall ensure that participants that have emotional and learning
disabilities are linked with ancillary services and academic/vocational
programming appropriate to their needs.

1.3.8 All treatment services shall adhere to existing Federal. State, and local
regulations, rules and policies, as applicable.

1.4 Ancillary Services

1.4.1 The Contractor shall provide case management services that focus on:

•  Stable Housing;
•  Employment and Career Skills;
•  EducationalA/ocational Goals;

•  Life Skills, such as budgeting; and
•  Other Individualized Services as needed for each individual.

1.4.2 The Contractor shall support participant involvement In 12-step programs by
encouraging family memt)ers of participants to attend a weekly multi-family
group meeting, engage in family counseling, and interact with treatment
providers. The Contractor shall ensure that participants are giving one hour
per week of their time, in later stages of treatment, to give back and help
facilitate treatment for those in earlier treatment phases.

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center Exhibit A - Scope of Services Contractor Initials:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Clinical Services: Hlllsborough County Drug Court Supporting Services

Exhibit A

1.4.3 The Contractor shall review the Insurance status of program participants and
assist them with application for or enrollment in a Qualified Health Plan (OHP),
Medicaid, or Medicare, as appropriate.

1.4.4 The Contractor shall utilize an electronic health record for all program
participants, and shall ensure services provided under this contract, that could
be covered and paid for by a participant's insurer, are accordingly submitted to
such Insurer for payment. In no event shall contract funds be utilized for
services that are covered by such insurers.

1.4.5 The Contractor shall provide referrai sen/ices for program participants to
receive STD/HIV/and HCV counseling and testing through the City of Nashua's
Public Health Department, if the participant does not have a primary care
doctor.

1.4.6 The Contractor shall develop a client Incentive plan, for approval by the
Program Director, which specifies how clients can receive the cash Incentive to
encourage participation in the program. Cash incentives are limited to no more
than $10/cllent/initlative not to annually exceed $750 in the aggregate across
all clients and programs.

1.5 Program Coordination

1.5.1 The Contractor shall coordinate with and support the HCDC's overall efforts to
achieve positive outcomes for program participants by:

•  Timely assessing individuals referred to the program by the HCDC;
•  Beginning treatment for accepted individuals within two to three days of the

HCDC's acceptance of a plea from the individual;
•  Assisting in the development of proximal and distal goals for each

participant;

•  Conducting weekly Drug Court Team meetings to review the weekly
progress of each participant;

•  Providing input and supporting documentation on recommended sanctions
and incentives based on an individual's progress;

•  Conducting monthly HCDC meetings to review the status of program, data
from evaluators, make appropriate modifications and celebrate successes;

•  Participating in the development of operational standards and policies for
Drug Court, in conjunction with other participating agencies;

•  Supporting continuing interdisciplinary education of the Drug Court Team;
and

•  Supporting HCDC efforts to forge partnerships among drug courts, public
agencies and community-based organizations to generate local support
and improve the effectiveness of the HCDC. This shall include recruiting a
member for the Steering Committee, and attending statewide drug court
meetings and trainings.

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center Exhibit A - Scope of Services Contractor Initials:
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Exhibit A

1.6 Data Reporting and Quality Assurance

1.6.1 The Contractor shall work In conjunction with the project's Data Manager, an
employee of the Community Health Institute, to ensure that the Center for
Sut)stance Abuse Treatment's (CSAT) Common Data Platform (CDP) web
system Is used to report client-level performance data on a variety of measures,
including but not limited to:

•  Client substance at>use;

•  Criminal activity;
•  Social, work and living environments;
•  Social and family connections;

•  Treatment, engagement and adherence; and
•  Education and employment status.

1.6.2 The Contractor shall Instruct its staff and provide the supervision necessary to
ensure that data entered on the CDP is accurate and timely completed.

1.6.3 The Contractor shall meet with the project's Data Manager to review evaluation
reports. In a timely manner, and to facilitate program development and
Improvement.

1.6.4 The Contractor shall assist the project's Data Manager In the completion of
required quarterly reports to contract funding agencies.

1.4 Training

1.4.1 The Contractor shall ensure clinical staff and case managers, participating In
the Drug Court Team and providing direct clinical services to program
participants, are trained on the use of evidence-based tools, such as the ASI
used in early assessment, and MRT and other Interventions.

1.4.2 The Contractor shall ensure that at least one (1) member of Its staff performing
services under this contract attend the annual National Association of Drug
Court Professionals conference

I

2. Population Served
The Contractor shall serve two populations within the HCDC. The current program
population represents the current HCDC capacity to serve 40 Individuals. The expanded
program population represents the newly expanded capacity supported by this contract.

2.1 Current Program Population: the Contractor shall provide only those services that
were previously not available to these participants In the HCDC.

2.2 Expanded Program Population: HCDC participants will receive the full array of
services Included In this contract.

3. staffing
3.1 The Contractor shall provide staff sufficient to perform the contracted services.

Including at minimum:

3.1.1 Drug Court Coordinator (1 Full Time) - this individual will provide overall
coordination for the program and Its activities.

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center Exhibit A - Scope of Services Contractor Initials:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Cllnicat Services: Hiilsborough County Drug Court Supporting Services

Exhibit A

3.1.2 Therapist (1 Full Time) - this individual will provide oversight for and
supervision of the program's assessment and treatment services, and may
attend occasional court sessions arnl planning meetings. The Individual shall
be licensed as a master's level clinician with experience in mental health and
substance use disorders.

3.1.3 Case Managers (1.5 Full Time Equivalent) - these individuals will provide to
program participants: case management services, education and vocational
counseling, referrals, address life skills, and provide assistance with housing
and budgeting. These individuals will also attend weekly court meetings,
collaborate with and report to other team members, and assist with initial
Identification and risk assessment for candidates for the program.

3.1.4 Psychiatric Services (2 hours per week for 52 weeks) - Individuals providing
these sen/Ice may be employees or subcontractors of the Contractor, and will
provide Medication Assisted Therapy (for use of naltrexone or suboxone) for
uninsured program participants.

3.2 The Contractor shall ensure that all clinical staff serving program participants have an
understanding of the current definition of trauma and are knowledgeable about the
diagnosis and treatment of trauma and stressor related disorders.

4. Compliance
4.1 The Contractor's assigned project staff shall comply with the State of New Hampshire

Office of Information Technology Computer Use agreement.

4.2 Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Standards of Care

The Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) recognizes that culture and
language have considerable impact on how consumers access and respond to public
health services. Culturally and linguistically diverse populations experience barriers in
efforts to access health services. To ensure equal access to quality health services,
the Division of Public Health Services (DPHS) expects that Contractors shall provide
culturally and linguistically appropriate services according to the following guidelines:

4.2.1 Assess the ethnic/cultural needs, resources and assets of their community.

4.2.2 Promote the knowledge and skills necessary for staff to work effectively with
consumers with respect to their culturally and linguistically diverse environment.

4.2.3 When feasible and appropriate, provide clients of limited English proficiency
(LEP) with interpretation services. Persons of LEP are defined as those who
do not speak English as their primary language and whose skills in listening to.
speaking, or reading English are such that they are unable to adequately
understand ar>d participate in the care or in the services provided to them
without language assistance.

4.2.4 Offer consumers a forum through which families of children served through the
program have the opportunity to provide feedback to providers and
organizations regarding cultural and linguistic issues that may deserve
response.
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The Contractor shall maintain a program policy that sets forth compliance with Title VI,
Language Efficiency and Proficiency Citation 45 CFR 80.3(b) (2). The policy shall
describe the way in which the items listed above were addressed and shall indicate the
circumstances in which interpretation sen/ices are provided and the method of
providing service (e.g. trained interpreter, staff person who speaks the language of the
client or language line).

5. Performance and Quality Improvement Measures .
5.1 The Contractor shall meet with the program's Data Manager to receive feedback, |

derived from Participant Feedback Surveys, so that the team can tailor improvements j
to the program accordingly. I

5.2 The Contractor shall participate in periodic evaluation meetings with Drug Court Team
members that are facilitated by the program's Data Manager.

I
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New Hampshire Department of HeaKh and Human Services
Clinical Services: Hiilsborough County Drug Court Supporting Services

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, block 1.0, of the
General Provisions (P-37) of this Agreement, in consideration for the Contractor's compliance with
the terms and conditions of this Agreement and for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant
to Exhibit A, Scope of Services. rA/\_

2. Contract period: October 1. 2015 through September 30, I* cV
3. The Contractor shall be reimbursed for providing and delivering the services descrit)ed in Exhibit A.

Scope of Services, on a cost reimbursement basis and pursuant to the budgets contained in Exhibit
B-1 for the applicable state fiscal year.

4. The Contractor shall ensure services provided under this Agreement, that could be covered and paid
for by a participant's insurer, are accordingly submitted to such Insurer for payment. In no event shall
the Agreement's funds be utilized for services that are covered by such insurers, or any other third
parties.

5. The services described in Exhibit A\ Scope of Services, are funded with Federal funds made available
under:

CFDA #: 93.243

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and
Mental Health Services Administration

Program Title: SAMHSA Treatment Drug Courts
FAIN; TI026092

6. The Contractor agrees to provide the services described in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in
compliance with the Federal requirements applicable to the funding source stated in paragraph 5.

7. The Contractor shall submit an invoice, in a form satisfactory to the Department, by the twentieth
working day of each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses
incurred in the prior month. The Department shall make payment to the Contractor, within thirty (30)
days of receipt of such invoice, for services provided pursuant to this Agreement. The final invoice
Shan be due to the Department no later than thirty (30) days after the Contract Period's expiration.
The invoice shall be sent to:

Donna Walker

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

8. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any State or
Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if ̂ e said services have not
been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

9. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, an amendment limited to the terms of
the General Provisions, adjustments to amounts within the price limitation, may be made by written
agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of Governor and Council.
Budget adjustments will not be accepted after May 30"^ of each contract year.
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Exhibit B-1

Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Greater Nashua Mental Health Center

Budget Request for: Clinical Services • Hillsborough County Drug Court Expansion

Budget Period: 10/1/15-6/30/16

sap

1. Total Salary/Wages $  116,260.00 $  11,625.00 $  127.875.00

2. Employee Benefits $  26,737.50' $  2,673.75 $  29,411.25

3. Travel $  5,000.00 $  500.00 $  5,500.00

4. Pharmacy $ $ $

Suboxone (2 people x 12 months) $  2,250.00 $  225.00 $  2,475.00

Naltrexone (3 people per year) $  1,125.00 $  112.50 $  1.237.50

5. Subcontracts/Agreements $  15,600.00 $  1,560.00 $  17,160.00

6. Other (specific details mandatory): $ $ $

Client Incentives $  562.50 $  56.25 $  618.75

TOTAL $  167,525.00 $  16,752.50 $  184.277.50

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10.0%

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Contractor Name: Greater Nashua Mental Health Center

Budget Request for: Clinical Services - Hillsborough County Drug Court Expansion

Budget Period: 7/1/16-6/30/17

mm a"

.500.15,500.00155.000.00 $Total Salary/Wages

2. Employee Benefits
3. Travel

Pharmacy

Sut>oxone (2 people x 12 months)
Naltrexone (3 c>eopie per year)

5. Subcontracts/Agreements

6. Other (specific details mandatory):

Client Incentives

TOTAL

$  35,650.00

$  5.000.00

$

$  3.000.00

$  1.500.00

$  20.800.00

$

$ 750.00

$ 221.700.00

$  3,565.00

$ 500.00

300.00

$ 150.00

$  2,080.00

$

$ 75.00

$  22,170.00

39,215.00

5,500.00

3,300.00

1.650.00

22.880.00

825.00

243,870.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10.0%

NH DHHS

Exhibit B-1 Budget

Page 1 of 2

Contractor Initials:

Date:



Exhibit B-1

Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Contractor Name: Greater Nashua Mental Health Center

Budget Request for: Clinical Services - Hillsborough County Drug Court Expansion

Budget Period: 7/1/17-6/30/18

1. Total Salarv/Waaes $  155.000.00 $  15,500.00 $  170,500.00

2. Employee Benefits $  35.650.00 $  3,565.00 $  39.215.00

3. Travel $  5.000.00 $  500.00 $  5,500.00

4. Pharmacy $ $ $

Suboxone (2 people x 12 months) $  3,000.00 $  300.00 $  3,300.00

Naltrexone (3 people per year) $  1,500.00 $  150.00 $  1,650.00

5. Sutxxntracts/Aqreements $  20,800.00 $  2,080.00 $  22,880.00

6. Other (specific details mandatory): $ $ $

Client Incentives $  750.00 $  75.00 $  825.00

TOTAL %  221.700.00 $  22,170.00 $  243.870.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10.0%

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 1

Bidder/Contractor Name: Greater Nashua Mental Health Center 1
Riidaot Reauest for Clinical Services - Hillsboroueh County Drue Court Expansion I

Budget Period: 7/1/18 • 9/30/18

s
1. Total SalaryA/Vaqes

p
38.750.00 $ 3,875.00w 42.625.00

2. Employee Benefits $ 8.912.50 $ 891.25 $ 9,803.75

3. Travel $ - $ • $ -

4. Pharmacy $ - $ - $ -

1  Suboxone (2 people x 3 months) 1 $ 750.00 $ 75.00 $ 825.00

1  Naltrexone (3 people per year) $ 375.00 $ 37.50 $ 412.50

[5[Subcontracts/Agreements $ 5,200.00 $ 520.00 $ 5,720.00

1^Other (specific details mandatory): $ - $ - $ -

Client Incentives $ 187.50 $ 18.75 $ 206.25

TOTAL % 54,175.00 $ 5,417.50 $ 59,592.50 1
10Indirect As A Percent of Direct

NH DHHS

Exhibit B-1 Budget
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New Hampshire Department of HeaHh and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISiONS

Contractors Obligations; The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, In the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor Is permitted to determine the eligibility
of Individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be Informed of his/her right to a ̂ir
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the Individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of DefauK hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained In accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and ail invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared In accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs, Activities and Functions, Issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the

Department, the United States Department' of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, K is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall retum to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attomey or guardian.

ExNbit C - Special Provisions Contractor Inltiais C-A-
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for In the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the ternis of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that If, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purcha^ under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the aeration of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor, shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be requtr^ for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. OfRce of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, It will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the ̂ ard, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at; http://www.ojp.u$doj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
disalmination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to Its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whlstleblower Protections: the
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013) .

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.
When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prosp^ive subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the sut>contractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
perifonmance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initiais
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilitjes, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at Its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL; If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder. shall mean that
period of time or that specif»ed activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A. for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

^ A
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Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract. Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows;

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided In ExhibIt A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account{s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account Number, or any other
account. In the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract. Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising Its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to. identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to. any Information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of ttie Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Division reserves the right to renew the Agreement for up to three additional years, subject to
the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center ExhiW C-1 - Revisions to Standard Provisions Contractor Initials __:Zl
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTH ER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sut>-grantees and sub-contractors) that Is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to;

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street^
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

emptoyment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the empbyer in writing of his or her conviction for a vblation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
■ conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency In writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Empbyers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit 0 - Certiflcalion regarding Drug Free Contractor initials C ft"
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shaN include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3,1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:

a  ,
Date Name:

Title: c te o

Exhibit D - Certifwation regarding Drug Free Contractor Irutiala
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CERTiFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - COI^RACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
"Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
"Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
"Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
"Medicaid Program under Title XIX
"Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
"Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of (ingress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or wilfbe paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

u-
dDate Name:

Title:
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CERTiFICATiON REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation In this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learrrs
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal." "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will Include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
tower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may ,
decide the method and frequency by which It determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of exclud^ parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals: i
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection vrith obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) -
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions." without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

Date Name:
Title: C-tiP
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foUovinng
certification;

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefrts, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, tfie civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibKed from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Emptoyment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activKy);

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity,

-the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

-the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
t)asis of age In programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for farth-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2,2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or
debarment.

ExNWl 6 A_
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit 6

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services OfHce of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indicated above.

Contractor Name:

Date Name:

Title: c_^0

ExNbil G — »
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted In any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contract^ for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, If the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through St^e or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences. facilKies funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for Inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of.the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

Date Name: ̂  -m
Trtle: ce®

Exhibit H - Certification Regarding Contractor Initials
Environmental Tobacco Smoke
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New Hampshire Department of Heahh and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Sen/ices.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aaareaatlon" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" In 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as ttie term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 ExNbitI Contractof Initiats
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement u
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New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services

Exhibit I

I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall hot, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 ExNbit I Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies. f

e. if the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additlonai restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

A

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initiate ^ ̂
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit i

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and Indemnification from such
business assodates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices ail
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Sedion 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its

^  obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and Information related to
such disclosures as would t>e required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been othenwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business ^

3/2014 ExNbiM Contraaor Initials IV
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Exhibit I

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entitv

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provid^ to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 ExWbiM Contractof Initials
HeaKh Insurance Portability Act
Business Assodale Agreement . j

Page 5 of 6 Oate_ill^**



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the Invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions In this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and Indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

'^rne^o^e Cf-*—'—The State i ^

Signature of Authorized Representative

e-

Name of Authorized Representative

Representative
C)pOvA_Vx\0)
itie w Authorized Ri

II hi IS-
late ' 1

Signature of AutHorized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

deo
Title of Authorized Representative

Date

3/2014 Exhibit I
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CERTinCATION REGARDiNG THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT (FFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1.2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Comper^sation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
sutoward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annuaOy and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the followng Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act

Contractor Namk

Date Nar^rer"^ C » Tv)
Title: CaJO

cu®hks/iio7i3 Page1ol2
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forma

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: ̂  >8T.MS»t.a

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executjves in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following;

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name;

Name;

Amount:,

Amount:

Amount;

Amount:

Amount:

CU/DHHS/t 10713

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding
Accountability And Tranaparency Act (FFATA) Compliance

Page 2 of 2

Contractor Initiala
c /y

Dal© N ̂



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Evaluation Services-Hlilsbcrough County Drug Court Expansion

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Clinical Servlces-Hillsborough County Drug Court Expansion Contract

This 1" Amendment to the Evaluation Services-Hillsborough County Drug Court Expansion contract
(hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #1") dated this 19th day of October, 2018, is by and between the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Department") and JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., dba Community Health Institute
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a place of business at 501
South St. 2"^ Floor Bow, NH 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on November 18, 2015 (Late Item #A), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the

terms and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 3. the State may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of
the contract, and renew services for up to three (3) additional years, upon written agreement of the
parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation and extend the term of the agreement for
one (1) year to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 30. 2019.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$163,352.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White., Director.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9330.

5. Add Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security Requirements.

Community Heatth Institute Amendment
SS-2015-BDAS^O-HILLS Page 1 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Evaluation Servlces-Hillsborough County Drug Court Expansion

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date Name: ^

Community Health Institute

10/25/2018

Date Name: Jonat^ali.feteUart
Title: Region^ Director

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of New Hampshire . County of Merrimack on 10/25/2018 , before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

Signature/bll Notary Public or Justice of the Peace
L LOVE, Notary PubOo

|^f(Xd*6i8sk)n Bcplree Septembers, 2023

fName.affd,Title ofJ^otary or Justice of the Peace

.^My CConnmissiorfEkpires: 9/t? //33

Community Health Institute Amendment #1
SS-2015-BDAS-OO-HILLS Page 1 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Evaluation Services-Hlllsborough County Drug Court Expansion

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Community Health Institute
SS-2015-BDAS-00-HILLS

Amendment #1
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning In this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal Information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information Includes, but Is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

• 4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data In accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

'4^V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, ̂ and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as-their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information In response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated<ln this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User Is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is enervated and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and a'ccess privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders u^ for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information, i

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must: '

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of. Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as descrlbed in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential Information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s).-Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.'

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https:/Awww.nh.gov/dolt/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, a
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personalty identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification Is required, and, If so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that Implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformatlonSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that JSI RESEARCH & TRAINING

INSTITUTE,.INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business In New Hampshire on February 17,

2016.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Stale's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 739507

Certificate Number: 0004197337

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State ofNcw Hampshire,

this I5th day of October A.D. 2018.

William M. Gardrier

Secretary of State



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY HEALTH

INSTITUTE is a New Hampshire Trade Name registered to transact business in New Hampshire on April 12, 2016. 1 further

certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Slate's office have been received and is in good standing as far as

this office is concerned.

Business ID: 742096

Certificate Number; 0004197336

Op

BA.

©

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afilxed

the Seal of the State ofNew Hampshire,

this iSth day of October A.D. 2018.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of Stale



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORITY

I, Joel H. Lamstein. of the JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.. d/b/a Community Health Institute, do hereby

certify that:

1. I am the duly elected President of the JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.. d/b/a Community

Health Institute:

2. By Unanimous Consent in Writing of the Board of Directors in Lieu of the 2008 Annual Meeting, the

following is true copy of one resolution duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the JSI Research &

Training Institute. Inc.. d/b/a Community Health Institute, duly dated October 24. 2008;

RESOLVED: Appointment of Jonathan Stewart as Director of the Community Health Institute

with the authority to enter into contracts and agreements binding the Corporation.

3. I further certify that the foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked and remain in full

force and effect as of October 25. 2018.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the President of the JSI Research & Training Institute.

Inc.. d/b/a Communitv Health Institute this 25th day of October. 2018.

Joei/Iy Lamstein, President

STATE OF New Hampshire

COUNTY OF Merrimack

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 25"* dav of October. 2018 bv Joel H.

Lamstein.

-

DEBRA" li LOVE, Noti^ RubBff
2023

Notary Pu^ciJustice of the Peace
My Commiss/on Expires;

•  ''



A.CORO- CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DOrrYYY)

09/04/2018

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsemenL A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Mason & Mason Technology Insurance Services, Inc.
458 South Ave.
Whitman, MA 02382

gJHJACT Judy Yeary

w?.''no.exi.: (781) 447-6531 | f;Cg.Not;(781) 447-7230
IvearviSmasonlnsure.com

mSURERISt AFPORDtNO COVERAGE NAICI

INSURER A: Federal Insurance Comoanv 20281

INSURED

JSI d/b/a Community Health Institute
601 South Street

2nd Floor
Bow, NH 03304

INSURER B; Executive Risk Indemnity 35181

INSURER C;

INSURER 0:

INSURER E:

INSURER F;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
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A

1
1
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«
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,  20,000,000
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A WORKERS COUPENSATtON
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l—'
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N/A
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,  1,000,000

E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
,  1,000,000
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,  1,000,000

A
i

ERRORS & OMISSIONS

Directors & Officers

82120869
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11/09/2017

11/09/2017
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11/09/2018

EACH OCC/GEN AGG

EACH OCC/GEN AGG

2,000,000

3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS! LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. AddltiOMi R«m«r1u SehFAil*. m«y b« atUchFd If mor* tpae* l« («qulr»d)
It is understood and agreed that the State of NH Department of Health and Human Services Is included as an additional Insured as respects General Liability
as required by written contract per the terms and conditions of the policy.

state of NH Department of Health and Human Services
Brown Building
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

fSI ..
ACORD 25(2016/03) <S) 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
Mission Statement

JSI Research and Training Institute was incorporated in 1987 as a 501©3 non-profit
organization in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Our mission is to alleviate public
health problems both in the United States and in developing countries around the world
through applied research, technical assistance and training.

Community Health Institute
Mission Statement

The Community Health Institute's mission is to support and strengthen New Hampshire's
health care system by providing coordinated information dissemination and technical
assistance resources to health care providers, managers, planners, and policy makers,
statewide. Our success translates into improved access to quality health and social services
for all New Hampshire residents.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Report on the CoDSolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of JSl Research and
Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate (both non-profit organizations), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as of September 30, 2017, and the related
consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated fmancial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit'in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk

1



assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

OpinioD

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
as of September 30, 2017, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
consolidated financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited
financial statements in our report dated April 26, 2017. In our opinion, the summarized
consolidated comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended September
30, 2016 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements
from which it has been derived.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated April 23,
2018, on our consideration of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate's internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of their compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of JSI Research
and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate's internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate's
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Duxbury, Massachusetts
April 23,2018



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and AfTiliate
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

September 30,2017
(With Comparative Totals for 2016)

2017 2016

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables for program work

Loans receivable • related party

Field advances • program

Employee advances

Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Property and Equipment:

Furniture and equipment

Leasehold improvements

Less: Accumulated depreciation

Net Property and Equipment

Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

$  74,642,976

19,782,268

1,697,407

190,500

67,950

96,381,101

679,098

30,355

709,453

(651,423)

58,030

119,888

$  68,620,315

18,498,218

1,670,752

276,013

89,065,298

636,492

30,355

666,847

(634.621)

32,226

109,058

$  96359,019 $ 89J06,S82

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable and payroll withholdings

Accrued vacation

Advances for program work

Loans payable - related party

Notes payable

Contingencies

Total Current Liabilities

Net Assets:

Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted

Total Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$  1 1,678.687

1,920,964

35,095,465

196,828

48,891,944

47,467,027

200,048

47,667,075

5  963S9.019

10,873,875

1,824,437

30,642,424

1,001,492

44,342,228

44,706,560

157,794

44.864.354

89.206,582

See notes to consolidated financiaJ statements.



JSl Research and Trainmg Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended September 30, 2017
(With Comparative Totals for 2016)

2017 2016

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS:

Public Support and Revenue

Public Support;

Government grants and contracts:

U.S. Government $ 271,426,627 $ 243,054,246

Commonwealth of Massachusetts 5,258,877 6,069,315

Other grants and contracts ' 57,926,891 53,310,784
Program income 99,859 186,344
Contributions 332,613 11,700,204

In-kind project contributions 14,444,516 6,852,099

Interest income 121,168 41,432

Total Unrestricted Support and Revenue 349,610,551 321,214,424

Expenses

Program Services:

international programs 293,709,946 256,624,631
Domestic programs 19,653,591 18,826,817

Total Program Services 313,363,537 275,451,448

Supporting Services:

Management and General 33,327,219 31,053,862

Fundraising 149,914 171,766

Total Supporting Services 33,477,133 31,225,628

Total Expenses 346,840,670 306,677,076

Increase (Decrease) in Unrestricted Net Assets 2,769,881 14,537,348

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Program restricted net assets 32,840 152,794

Increase (decrease) in temporarily restricted net assets 32,840 152,794

Increase (decrease) in net assets 2,802,721 14,690,142

Net Assets at Beginning of Year 44,864,354 30,174,212

Net Assets at End of Year S 47,667,075 S 44,864354

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and AflUiate
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year Ended September 30,2017
(With Comparative Totals for 2016)

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORTING SERVICES

TOTAL

EXPENSES

InternatioDtl

Proerams

Domestic

Proerams Total

Management

And General Fuodraisine Total 2017 2016

Salaries $  26,154,724 $  7,921,065 $  34,075,789 $  6,731,319 $  64,270 $  6,795.589 $  40,871,378 S  38.731,616

Consultants 15.636.684 4,431,853 20,068.537 2,279,342 16,362 2395.704 22,364,241 22,656,189

Cooperating National

Salaries 36,099.944
■ 36,099.944 511,039 • 511.039 36,610,983 38,733,286

Travel 12.597,149 853,619 13,450,768 643,136 326 643,462 14,094,230 16,170,730

Allowance & Training 9.929,257 61,671 9,990,928 431.836 - 431,836 10,422.764 10,163,306

Sub-contracts 123,068,419 4,715.999 127,784,418 58,140 8,897 67,037 127,851,455 93,526,758

Equipment. Material and

Supplies 13,897,759 84.541 13,982300 443,184 - 443,184 14,425,484 6,969,920

Other Costs 41,881,494 1,584,843 43,466,337 22,212,421 60,059 22,272,480 65,738,817 72,857,717

In-kind project expenses 14,444.516 ♦ 14.444,516 - - - 14,444.516 6,852,135

Depreciation - . . 16.802 . 16.802 16,802 15,419

TOTAL EXPENSE $ 293.709,946 S  19,653,591 S 313363337 S  33327319 $  149.914 $  33.477,133 S 346340.670 $ 306,677.076

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended September 30, 2017
(With Comparative Totals for 2016)

2017 2016

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Increase (Decrease) in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net

$  2,802,721 $ 14,690,142

cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 16,802 15,419

(Increase) Decrease in receivables for program work (1.284,050) (118,116)

(Increase) Decrease in field advances - program (26,655) 2.160,324

(Increase) Decrease in employee advances 85.513 (7,586)

(increase) Decrease in prepaid expenses (67,950) 3,700

(Increase) Decrease in other assets (10,830) (25.722)

Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable and

payroll withholdings 804,812 4,702,652

Increase (Decrease) in accrued vacation 96,527 242.541

Increase (Decrease) in advances for program work 4.453.041 13,111.616

Net Cash Provided (Used) By

Operating Activities 6,869,931 34,774,970

Cash Flows From iDvesting Activities:

Loans made (1,001,492) -

Loans repaid 196,828 1,132,362

Acquisition of property and equipment (42,606) (10,579)

, Net Cash Provided (Used) By

Investing Activities (847,270) 1,121.783

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and <Cash Equivalents 6,022,661 35,896,753

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 68,620,315 32.723.562

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year S  74,642,976 S  68,620,315

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and AfTiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30,2017

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. was incorporated in the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts on April 11, 1979. JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. provides education
and research primarily to non-profit health and human service agencies both in the United States
and abroad. Current funding is principally from The United States Agency for International
Development and the United States Department of Health and Human Services (HHS).

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is the sole member of World Education, Inc. (AfTiliate)
with such powers as are typically accorded to a sole member including the power of appointment
and removal of the World Education, Inc. board of trustees, the right to approve amendments to
the bylaws and certificate of incorporation of World Education, Inc., and the right to approve any
merger, consolidation, dissolution or transfer of substantial assets of World Education, Inc.

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) was founded in 1951 and incorporated in the state of New
Jersey. Working in partnership with community, national, and international agencies in Asia,
Africa, and the United States, it provides professional assistance in the design and
implementation of non-formal adult education programs. These programs integrate functional
education with relevant problem-solving aspects of individual growth and national development
such as health, nutrition, family planning, childcare, refugee education, agricultural practices,
literacy, and income generation.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and its affiliate are tax exempt organizations under 501
(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code and file separate unconsolidated tax returns.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of JSI Research and Training
Institute, Inc. and World Education, Inc., its affiliate, (collectively referred to as the
Organization). Significant intrarentity accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Basis of Accounting
The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared utilizing the
accrual basis of accounting and include the accounts of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
and its affiliate in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.



JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLroATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
may differ from those estimates.

Fair Value

The Organization values its qualifying assets and liabilities under a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs and assumptions used to measure fair value. The hierarchy consists of three
broad levels: Level 1 inputs consist of unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets and liabilities and have the highest priority, Level 2 inputs consist of observable inputs
other than quoted prices for identical assets, and Level 3 inputs have the lowest priority. The
Organization uses appropriate valuation techniques based on the available inputs to measure the
fair value of its assets and liabilities. When available, the Organization measures fair value using
Level 1 inputs because they generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Organization considers all monies in banks and highly liquid investments with maturity
dates of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The carrying value of cash and cash
equivalents ^proximates fair value because of the -short maturities of those financial
instruments.

Investments

Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in
debt securities (marketable investments) are measured at fair values based on quoted market
prices in the consolidated statement of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses are
included in the statement of activities.

Property and Equipment /
Property and equipment is reported on the basis of cost less accumulated depreciation.
Acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of $5,000 are capitalized. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method calculated to extinguish the book value of the respective
assets over their estimated useful lives (5-7 years) of the related assets.

Revenue Recognition
The majority of the Organization's revenues are derived from contracts, cooperative agreements,
and grants with U.S. government agencies, primarily the United States Agency for International
Development and the United States Department of Health and Human Services. Revenues are
recognized when the Organization incurs qualifying expenditures that are reimbursable under the
terms of the contracts, agreements or grants, or in accordance with the grantor's restrictions.



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and AfTiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Revenue Recognition - continued
Unrestricted and restricted contributions are recognized as revenue at the date the pledge is made
or the gift is received, whichever is earlier.

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently
restricted support depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions.
Contributions are reported as temporarily restricted support and are then reclassified to
unrestricted net assets upon expiration of the time restriction. Temporarily restricted support,
whose restrictions are met in the same reporting period, is shown as unrestricted support.

Donated Materials and Services

Donated materials and services are recorded as in kind project contributions at their estimated
fair market value as of the date of receipt and as an expense in the accompanying consolidated
statement of activities. Donated services are recognized if the services received create or
enhance non-financial assets or require specialized skills that are provided by individuals
possessing those skills and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from income'taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code and is not a private foundation as described in Section 509. Accordingly, no provision for
income taxes is included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

The Organization has evaluated its tax positions and believes that there would be no material
changes to the results of its operations or financial position as a result of an audit by the
applicable taxing authorities, federal or state. The Organization has filed all of its known and
required returns in a timely manner including as permitted allowed extensions. Following
administrative practice of the taxing authorities, the tax years 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017, remain
open years subject to examination and review.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) file separate
unconsolidated tax returns. JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. files tax returns based on a
September 30* year end and its affiliate files tax returns based on a June 30* year end.

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
ftinctional basis jn the consolidated statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been
allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial Statement Presentation

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the
Organization reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to three
classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently
restricted net assets based upon the existence or absence of donor imposed restrictions. For the
year ended September 30, 2017 there was no activity in permanently restricted net assets.

Prior Year Comparative Totals
The financial statements include prior-year summarized comparative information in total. Such
information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such
information should be read in conjunction with the Company's financial statements for the year
ended September 30,2016, from which the summarized information was derived.

Reclassification

Certain amounts for 2016 have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.

NOTE 3 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains demand deposits and money market funds at financial institutions.
At times, certain balances held in these accounts may not be fully guaranteed by the United
States Government. The uninsured portions of cash and money market accounts are backed
solely by the assets of the financial institution. Therefore, the failure of a financial institution
could result in a financial loss to the Organization. However, the Organization has not
experienced losses on these accounts in the past and management believes the risk of loss, if any,
to be minimal.

NOTE 4 - INVESTMENTS

Fair Value

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the
Organization values its qualifying assets ^d liabilities under a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs and assumptions used to measure fair value. The three levels of the fair
value hierarchy are as follows:
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^  JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 4 - INVESTMENTS - continued

Fair Value - continued

• Level I - Observable inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

•  Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are observable for the
asset either directly or indirectly, including inputs from markets that are not considered to
be active.

•  Level 3 - Unobservable inputs which reflect the Organization's assessment of the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability including
assumptions about risk.

A qualifying asset or liability's level within the framework is based upon the lowest level of any
input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

The following is a summary of fair values of investments which are measured on a recurring
basis using Level 1 inputs as recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position at
September 30,2017:

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (invested) $ 61,271,603
L

. S 61,271,603

No assets or liabilities were measured at Level 2 or Level 3.

The following schedule summarizes the Investment return and its classification in the
Consolidated Statement of Activities for the year ended September 30, 2017:

Unrestricted

Interest income $ 121,168

Total investment return S 121,168

12



JSl Research and Traioing Institute, Inc« and ARiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 5 - RECEIVABLES FOR PROGRAM WORK

Receivables for program work are stated at the amount management expects to collect fnjm
outstanding balances. Management provides for probable uncollectable amounts through a
provision for bad debt expense and an adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its
assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the
valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The allowance for doubtful accounts at

September 30,2017 was $0.

Receivables for program work consist of the following at September 30,2017:

U.S. Agency for Intemational Development $ 11,921,024
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 814,712

U.S. Department of State 1,306,716

U.S. Department of Labor 111,857
Commonwealth of Massachusetts 584,391

Other - non-govemmental 5.043,568

$ 19,782,268

NOTE 6 - LOANS RECEIVABLE - RELATED PARTY

Loans receivable - related party consist of various unsecured short-term loans, due on demand,
from John Snow, Inc., a related party (See NOTE 17). No interest is charged on the loans. The
loans receivable balance at September 30, 2017 is $0.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and AfTiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 7 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Property and equipment and accumulated depreciation account balances are as follows:

Cost

Accumulated

Depreciation

$  709,453 $ (651,423)- S_

Net

Furniture and equipment $ 679,098 $ (621,068) $ 58,030
Leasehold improvements 30,355 (30,355)

58,030

Depreciation expense was $ 16,802 for the year ended September 30, 2017.

NOTE 8 - OTHER ASSETS

Other assets consist of the following at September 30,2017:

Deposits
Artwork - donated

82,943

36,945

119,888

Donated artwork is recorded at a discounted appraised value at the date of gift.

NOTE 9 - ACCRUED VACATION

In accordance with formal policies, vacation was accrued at September 30, 2017 as follows:

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate)
$  1,628,028

292,936

$  1,920,964
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and AfRliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 10 - ADVANCES FOR PROGRAM WORK

Advances for program work consist of the following at September 30, 2017:

Other - non-govemmental

Partnership for Supply Chain Management, Inc. (related party) $ 91,723
, Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation 25,082,446
Other 9.921.296

%  35,095,465

NOTE 11 - LOANS PAYABLE - RELATED PARTY

Loans payable - related party consist of various unsecured short-term loans, payable on demand,
from John Snow, Inc., a related party (See NOTE 17). No interest is charged on the loans. The
loans payable balance at September 30,2017 is $196,828.

NOTE 12-NOTES PAYABLE

Citizens Bank

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) has a revolving line of credit established February 3, 2004 with
Citizens Bank of Massachusetts with a borrowing limit of up to $500,000. The revolving line of
credit was renewed on July 11, 2017. The loan is payable on demand. Interest is charged by
utilizing a fluctuating rate based on the LIBOR (Advantage) rate plus 2.50%. The line of credit
remains in effect until May 31, 2018 and annually thereafter contingent upon performance. The
loan is collateralized by a first priority interest in all the assets of World Education, Inc. No
funds were borrowed during the year and as a result, as of September 30, 2017, the outstanding
balance is $0 and no interest was incurred on this loan during the year ended September 30,
2017.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 12 - NOTES PAYABLE ■ continued

John Snow. Inc.

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) has an unsecured revolving line of credit established September
1, 2007 with John Snow, Inc. (a related party) with a borrowing limit of up to $1,000,000. The
loan was renewed on July 1, 2016. Interest is charged by utilizing a fluctuating rate based on the
current prime rate plus 0.25®/o. The loan is payable on demand and, in any event, on or prior to
June 30, 2017. The loan is not collateralized. No funds were borrowed during the year and as a
result, as of September 30, 2017, the outstanding balance is $0. No interest was incurred on this
loan during' the year ended September 30,2017. (See NOTE 17)

NOTE 13 - CONTINGENCIES

In accord^ce with the terms of its federal and state grants and contracts, the records of the
Organization are subject to audit. The Organization is, therefore, contingently liable for any
disallowed costs. Management believes that any adjustment, which might result from such an
audit, would be immaterial.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is a co-borrower (with a related party) of a demand loan
with no balance due at September 30, 2017. Management believes that the co-borrower is
current on the loan and that its collateral exceeds the balance due. (See NOTE 17)

Provisional indirect cost rates are negotiated with the United States Agency for International
Development (AID) on an annual basis. As of September 30, 2017, actual, indirect cost rates
have been approved by AID for JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. through December 31,
2010 and World Education, Inc. through June 30, 2015. Based on favorable past experience,
management believes the effects of changes to the overhead rates, if any, would not be material
to the financial statements.
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JSI Research and Training Institute^ Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 14 - TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets are restricted by donors as follows at September 30,2017:

Program Services $ 195,048

Time Restrictions 5,000

$  200,048

No assets were released from donor restriction by occurrence of events specified by the donor
during the year ended September 30, 2017.

NOTE 15 - SURPLUS REVENUE RETENTION

In accordance with the Massachusetts Division of Bureau Services, Regulation 808 OMR
1.03(7), "if, through cost savings initiatives implemented consistent with programmatic and
contractual obligations, a non-profit Contractor accrues an annual net surplus from the revenues
and expenses associated with services provided to Departments which are subject to 808 OMR
1.00, the Contractor may retain, for future use, a portion of that annual surplus not to exceed
20% of said revenues. Surpluses may be used by the Contractor for any of its established
charitable purposes, provided that no portion of the surplus may be used for any non
reimbursable cost set forth in 808 CMR 1.05, the free care prohibition excepted. Operational
Services Division shall be responsible for determining the amount of surplus that may be
retained by each Contractor in any given year and may determine whether any excess surplus
shall be used to reduce future prices or be recouped."

For the year ended September 30, 2017, the organization did not have an annual net surplus that
exceeded 20% of relevant Massachusetts revenues.

17



JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 16 - COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

The following is a schedule of expenditures with the Commonwealth of Massachusetts:

Receivables from program work at October 1,2016 $ 549,882

Receipts (5,224,368)

Disbursements/expenditures 5,258,877

Receivables from program woric at September 30,2017 $ 584391

NOTE 17 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

John Snow, Inc.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. (an exempt organization) and John Snow, Inc. (a non-
exempt corporation) purchase consulting services from each other. Mr. Joel Lamstein is
President and Director of both organizations, and is the sole stockholder of John Snow, Inc. The
two companies bill each other at the same rates that they bill the federal and state governments.

During the year ended September 30, 2017, John Snow, Inc. billed JSI Research and Training
Institute, Inc. $24,641,616 for consulting services (technical support). This amount is reflected
under the program services - consulting line item ($16,086,359) and program services - other
costs line item ($8,555,257) on the statement of functional expenses. In addition, JSI Research
and Training Institute, Inc. performed consulting services (technical support) for John Snow, Inc.
totaling $7,459,675.

The two companies also share facilities and pool various overhead expenses. For the year ended
September 30, 2017, JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. incurred $25,994,433 of overhead
expenses (supporting services), of which $9,314,712 was its share of John Snow, Inc. incurred
costs.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is a co-borrower with John Snow, Inc. on a commercial
demand loan-revolving line of credit with an expiration date of May 31, 2018, which allows for
borrowings up to $6,500,000. The loan is collateralized by a security agreement with a first
position lien on all corporate assets of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and John Snow,
Inc. including assignment of promissory notes and security documents between the two
companies. Interest is charged by utilizing a fluctuating rate based on LIBOR (Advantage) plus
two percent (2.00%) payable monthly in arrears, which at September 30, 2017 was 3.235%. At
September 30, 2017, a balance of $0 was outstanding on the loan. Management believes the loan
payable will be extended, when due, under similar terms and conditions.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 17 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - continued

John Snow, Inc. - continued

During the year, the Company had various loans receivable due from, and various loans payable
due to John Snow, Inc. At September 30, 2017, the loan receivable balance is $0 and the loan
payable balance is $196,828.

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) has an agreement with John Snow, Inc. whereby John Snow,

Inc. will provide administrative and technical support as deemed necessary by World Education,
Inc.'s Board of Trustees. Transactions with John Snow, Inc. for the year ended September 30,
2017 are summarized as follows:

Administrative and technical support S 1,481,286

Other direct charges (including rent of $884,924) 1,297,647

$  2,778,933

The agreement is on a year-to-year basis and can be terminated by either party upon ninety days
written notice to the other.

World Education, Inc. provided services to John Snow, Inc. during the year ended September 30,
2017 totaling $88,760 and was recorded as revenue in the consolidated statement of activities.

World Education, Inc. has an unsecured line of credit with John Snow, Inc. with a borrowing
limit of up to $1,000,000. (See NOTE 12)

Partnership for Supply Chain Management, Inc.
Partnership for Supply Chain Management, Inc. (PSCM) (an exempt organization) was
incorporated on February 14, 2005 by JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Management
Sciences for Health, Inc. Each organization has 50% control.

PSCM has been awarded a U.S. government contract to procure and deliver life-saving
medicines and medical supplies to treat HIV/AIDS patients worldwide. The contract for the
Supply Chain Management System project was awarded through the U.S. Agency for the
International Development as part of the U.S. government's $15 billion President's Emergency
Plan for AIDS Relief.

Mr. Joel Lamstein, President and Director of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., is
President and Director of PSCM.
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JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 17 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - continued

Partnership for Supply Chain Management, Inc. - continued

During the year ended September 30, 2017, JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. billed
PSCM $11,771,551 for services performed with a cost of $9,926,355 and a fee of $1,845,196.
At September 30, 2017, PSCM advanced the Organization $91,723 for program work.

Other

The Organization has an agreement with a certain related company to purchase services.
Transactions with this company were charged to sub-contracts expense and are as follows:

The Manoff Group, Inc. (a non-exempt corporation;

40% owned by John Snow, Inc.) $ 1,061,497

$  1,061,497

NOTE 18 - RETIREMENT PLANS

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. has a defined contribution profit sharing/401(K) plan
covering substantially all its. employees. Employee contributions are voluntary. Employer
contributions are based on a percentage (10% - 15% depending on length of service) of salary.
The Plan was effective April 11, 1979. Pension expense was $3,612,409 for the year ended
September 30, 2017.

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) provides retirement benefits to substantially all employees
under a plan. World Education, Inc.'s contributions of 7 percent of employee salaries are used to
purchase individual annuities. Additional voluntary contributions may be made by the
employees. Particip^ts of the plan are fully and immediately vested when contributions are
made. Pension costs incurred by World Education, Inc. were $334,310 for the year ended
September 30,2017.

NOTE 19 - COMMITMENTS

Operating Leases
The JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. leases space for general offices under operating
leases expiring from 2017 through 2019. The leases contain renewal options for periods of up to
5 years.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 19 - COMMITMENTS - continued

During the year ended September 30, 2017, rentals under long-tenn lease obligations were
$518,335. Future obligations over the primary terms of the Company's long-term leases as of
September 30,2017 are:

Year Ended

September 30,

2018 $ 386,434

2019 127,139

513,573

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) leases space for general offices on a year-to-year basis. Rent
expense for the year ended September 30,2017 was $884,924.

NOTE 20 - CONCENTRATION OF FUNDING

The Organization receives a majority of its funding through contracts and grants with various
departments and agencies of the Federal government.

The Organization received 10% or more of its revenues and support from the following sources
for the year ended September 30,2017:

locome % of

Received Total locome

U.S. Agency for International Development $ 209,646,197 59.97%

NOTE 21 - IN KIND PROJECT CONTRIBUTIONS

The Organization receives donated materials and services consisting of commodities, facilities
and equipment, and services for use in its programs fixim overseas collaborative private
voluntary organizations and from foundations providing grants directly to a project. Donated
materials and services totaled $14,444,516 for the year ended September 30, 2017, and are
reflected as In Kind Project Contributions on the Consolidated Statement of Activities and In
Kind Project Expenses on the Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and AfTiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 21 - IN KIND PROJECT CONTRIBUTIONS - continued

These contributions satisfy part of the matching requirements needed to obtain full funding on
certain U.S. Agency for International Development grants. During the year ended September 30,
2017, the following donated materials and services received by the Organization have been used
to fulfill matching requirements on active grants:

36532 Turkmenistan YC $  39,146

36697 SPRING 3,702,019

36895 Mozambique M-SIP 21,755

36991 AIDS FREE 8,507,628

37024 Tanzania CHSS 982,199

37134 Timor Leste RBHS 208,708

37162 Ghana HIV/AIDS 54,044

37186 Madagascar CCH 229,806

37244 Russia P2P 21,234

63101 Senegal/Journalism 90,738

63114 Uganda 75,264

63139 Benin FFE 13,330

64024 Tanzania 21,702

64057 Zimbabwe 61,029

64062 Uganda 192,537

64071 OUTCOMES 136,459

64074 Mozambique 76,471

14,434,069

NOTE 22 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through-April 23, 2018, the date on which the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. During this period, there were no
subsequent events that require adjustment to the consolidated financial statements.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2017

Agency or Federal Passed

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor Pass-through CFDA Through to Federal

Proeram Title Number Number Subreclpients Expenditures

U.S. AGENCV FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT:

Direct Grants:

36521 - Uganda HIV/AIDS/TB 617-A-OO,-09-00007-00 98.001 $  35,943 $  478,356
36532 - Turkmenistan YC 120-A-00-09-00029-00 98.001 - 276,323

36662 • Madagascar CBIHP 687-A-OO-l 1-00013-00 98.001 (10.469) (10,469)
36697-SPRING AID-OAA-A-ll-00031 98.001 7,483,566 27,002,657

36702 ■ Nepal CHX Cord Care AlD-OAA-A-l 1-00073 98.001 - 1,015,986
36747 ■ Ukraine HWUP AlD-i2l-A-11-00003 98.001 - 7,656

36800 • Advancing Partners AID-OAA-A.12-00047 98.001 38,170,434 60,045,239
36845 - Pakistan HSSP AID-39I-A-I3-00002 98.001 1,694,570 6,061,436

36895 • Mozambique M-SIP A1D-656-A-I3-00006 98.001 - 1,213,872
36932 - Senegal LLP A1D-685-A-14-00001 98.001 12,252 127,675

36991 - AIDSFREE A) D-OAA-A-14-00046 98.001 27,033,705 46,523,456

37024-Tanzania CHSS AID-62I-A-I4-00004 98.001 1,545,547 9,323,796
37129 - Zambia Discover Health AID-6n-A-l6-00004 98.001 1,197,619 19,810,322

37134 - Timor Lcste RBHS AID-472-A-I6-00001 98.001 - 1,498,645

37162 -GhanaHIV/AIDS AID-64I-A-I6-00007 98.001 1,567,945 4,907,365
37186-Madagascar CCH AID-687-A-I6-00001 98.001 471,524 6,992,770

Total Direct Grants - CFDA iit98.00l '

79^02,636 185,275.085

Pass-through Grants: •

Passed through Partnership for Supply Chain

Management, Inc. (PSCM):

36344/36519/36524/37034/37053/37150 - Supply

Chain Management System GPO-l-OO-05.00032-00 98.001 - 9,926,355

Passed throu^ Johns Hopkins University:

37099 - Ethiopia SBCC A(D-663-A-l5-OOOOn 98.001 - (1.076)
Passed throu^ Pathfinder International:

37265 - Ethiopia TRANSFORM A) D663A1700002 98.001 . 887,909

Passed through Program for Appropriate Technology

in Health:

37301 - Open LMIS-Phase! AID.2I34.0I555716-CR 98.001 . 44,269

Passed through Management Science for Health, Inc.:

37305 - MSH Guinea eLMIS TA S1APS-Gulnca-I7-0I 98.001 - 35.186

Total Pass-through Grants - CFDA //98.001
- 10,892.643

Total - CFDA m.OOl - USAID Foreign

Assistance for Programs Overseas 79^02,636 196,167,728

TOTAL - U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL

DEVELOPMENT $ 79,202,636 $  196,167.728

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 23



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2017

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor

Program Title

Agency or

Pass>throagh

Number

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES:

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through NACCHO:

36689 - NH MRC Conferences 2011-041218

Total CFDA ̂3.008 - Medical Reserve Corps

Small Grant Program

Direct Grant:

37087 • Adolescent HIV/AIDS Prevention MAlAHOOOOOl

Total CFDA M3.057 • National Resource Center

for HIV Prevention Among Adolescents

Direct Grant:

37128 • Competitive Abstinence Education

Total CFDA #93.060 • Competitive Abstinence

Education (CAE)

Direct Grant:

36901 - CDC - Strategic Assessments for Strategic

Action in India

Total CFDA #93.067 - Global AIDS

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through State of Vermont:

37096 - Asthma Control Program

37206 - VT Climate Change Eval.

37212 -VTHPDP Evaluation

Total CFDA #93.070 • Environmental Public

Health and Emergency Response

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through the State of New Hampshire:

37132-NH Ebola Readiness

37222-South Central CHIP

Total CFDA #93.074 - Hospital Preparedness

Program

Agreement @09/30/15

IU2GGHOOI I32.0I

29370

31578

Contract #31786

.Agreement @ II/I8/I5

Agreement @ 04/01/16

Federal Possed

CFDA Through to Federal

Number Subreciplents Expenditures

93.008 S

93.057 55.510

55310

93.060

93.067

93.070

93.070

93.070

93.074

93.074

75

75

342.523

342323

9.391

9391

24.360

24360

4,048

10391

29.867

44.506

877

1.064

1,941

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 24



JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2017

Federal Grantor/PasS'through Grantor
Program Title

Agency or

Pass-through
Number

Federal

CFDA

VS. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTINUED:

U30CS29366

APW/CHAMPS/9.I.16

APW/II.10.I6/CHACT

APW/NACH/10.12.16

Agreement, 01 •30-2017

U30CS16089

Direct Grant:

37103-HITEQ

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through Community Health Assoc. of

Mountain/Plain States:

37225 - CHAMPS Planning 2016
Passed through Community Health Center:

37241 - CHCACT UDS Training
Passed through National Assoc. of Community Health

Centers, Inc.:

37256 - NACHC Pop Health Web

37266 - NACHC Payment Reform

37319-NACHC PR Webinar

Total CFDA #93.129 - Technical and

Non-Financial Assistance to Health Centers

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Dartmou^ Toxic Metals:

37297 - Dartmouth Arsenic Site

Total CFDA #93.143 - NIEHS Superfund

Hazardous Substances-Basic Research and Education

Direct Grant:

36904 - Ryan White ACE UF2HA26520

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Health Research, Inc.:

37221 - National Quality Center Evaluation Project Agreement @ 7-01-16

Total CFDA #93.145 - AIDS Education and

Training Centers

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through the State of Vermont.:

37212 - VT HPDP Evaluation

Total CFDA #93.184 - Disabilities Prevention

APW/DTMSRP/4.I7.

Contract #31786

I7

Pass-through Grants:

37163 • FamPian Data Systems

37281 - FamPian Data Systems

Total CFDA #93.217 • Family Planning Services

93.129

93.129

93.129

93.129

93.129

93.129

93.143

93.145

93.145

93.184

93.217

93.217

Passed

Through to Federal

1,308,648 2,116,274

- 4,847

• 3,578

676

- 13,801

- 1,283

1.308,648 2,140,459

1,421

1.421

3,333 4,667

86,326

3333 90,993

•14,171

14.171

116,399
. 68,774

185,173
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JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2017

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor
Program Title

Agency or

Pass>through
Number

Federal Passed

CFDA Through to
Number Subreclplents

Federal

Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED:

Direct Grant:

37103 -HITEQ

Total CFDA #93.224 - Health Center Program

(Community Health Centers, Migrant Health

Centers, Health Care for the Homeless,

and Public Housing Primary Care)

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through Buildings Bright Futures State

Advisory Council, Inc.:

36850 - Vermont L.A.U.N.C.H. Project

Passed through Community Health Institute and

Harbor Homes, Inc.:

37042 - Harbor Homes Inc.

Passed through State of Rhode Island:

37107-PFS II

Passed through State of New Hampshire:

37133 - HCDC Evaluation

3715 r - NH DMH Client Survey

Passed through State of Vermont:

37212-VT LOL Survey

Passed through Prism Health North Texas:

37286 - HS Atlanta Consulting

Passed through Savannah State University:

37286 - HS Atlanta Consulting

Passed through Substance Abuse Certer:

37300 - R1 Healthy Trans

Total CFDA #93.243 • Substance Abuse and

Mental Health Services Projects of Regional

and National SignlFicance

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Boston University:

37243 • Dartmouth Training

Total CFDA #93.249 - Public Health Training

Centers Program

U30CS29366-03 93.224

13/7

3426881

Agreement @ 10/01/15

Agreement @01/13/16

Contract #31786_

Emails 4/24-7/7/2017

Email 7/28/17

93.243

93.243

93.243

93.243

93.243

93.243

93.243

93.243

93.243

93.249

16.477

16,477

1.540

10,000

14.413

3,083

29,036

96,580

96,580

52,268

4,612

60,705

44,358

66,857

31,531

7,313

4,367

13,249

28SJ60

5,415

5,415
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JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2017

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor
Program Title

Agency or

Pass-th rough
Number

Federal

CFDA

Number Subreciplents

Passed

Through to Federal

Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED:

Direct Grants:

36777 • National Training Center - Quality Assurance,

Quality Improvement, Evaluation

36787 - Reproductive Health Prevention Training

and Technical Assistance

36792 • National Training Center for Management

and Systems Improvement

37223 • Family Planning National Training Center

for Service Delivery Improvement

Total - CFDA #93.260 - Family Planning •

Penonnel Training

Direct Grant:

37321 -HRSA RRHO

Total CFDA #93.266 - Health Systems

Strengthening and HIV/AIDS Prevention,

Care and Treatment under the President's

Emergency Plan for AIDS Relief

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through United Way/Greater Nashua:

36937 - Nashua DFC Eval FY14

Passed through Narragansett Prevention Partnership:

37148-NPP Evaluation

Passed through Monadnock Alcohol and Drug Abuse

Coalition:

37184-Monadnock TAP

Passed through City of Franklin, NH:

37290 - FMDTF DFC Eval

Passed through Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital:

37324 - Upper Valley DFC Eval

Total CFDA #93.276 - Drug-free Communities

Support Program Grants

FPTPA006025

FPTPA0060t5

FPTPA006023

FPTPA006028

UH5HA30789

Agreement @ 9-30-16

Agreement @ I-01-16

Agreement @2-01-16

APW/COF/I.5.17

Agreement @ 3-29- i 7

93.260

93.260

93.260

93.260 1.247.914

1,247,914

93.266

93.276

93.276

93.276

93.276

93.276

4

143

(3,481)

3.447.396

3.444.062

131,343

I3U43

4,075

11,282

217

9,008

2,005

26,587
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JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2017
1

Agency or Federal Passed

Federal Grentor/Pass-through Grantor Pass-through CFDA Through to Federal
Proeram Title Number Number Subreclpients Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTINUED:

PasMbrough Grants:
1

Passed through Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Department of Health;

HIV/AJDS Research. Training and Support INTP.4111M04500824036 93.283 - 169,912

Passed through Catholic Medical Center Community

Services:

37315 - CMC Focus Group APW/CMC/6.14.17 93.283 . 986

Passed through State of Vermont:

37125 -VOHC Planning 30445 93.283 . 443

37212 -VT HPDP Evaluation Contract #31786 93.283 - ■  9.457

Total - CFDA #93.283 - Centers for Disease

Control and Prevention - Investigations

and Technical Assistance
- 180,798

Direct Grant:

36891 - PPHF 2013 - OSTLTS Partnerships 1U38OT000I88 93.292 49,000 98.131

Total - CFDA #93.292 - National Public Health

Improvement Initiative 49.000 98,131

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through New Hampshire Dept. of Health and

Human Services:

37214 - NH Tobacco Helpline FY17 Agreement @ 07-01-16 93.305 . 122,169
Passed through Vermont Department of Health:
37212 - Vermont Health Evaluation Contract #31786 93.305 3.083 165.256

ToUl - CFDA #93305 - Nat State Based

Tobacco Control Program 3,083 287,425

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through the Association of State and Territorial

Health Officials:
"

37149 - ASTHO Adult Immunization Agreement @ I-0I-I6 93.524 . 488

37273 - ASTHO Toolkit 63-12913 93.524 - 4,879

Total - CFDA #93.524 - Building Capacity of
.

the Public Health System to Improve

Population Health through Nat'l. NPOs
•  - 5J67

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 28



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2017

Federal Grantor/Pass-tbrough Grantor
Program Title

Agency or

Pass-through
Number

Federal Passed

CFDA Through to
Number Subreclpients

Federal

Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED:

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through the University of Colorado:

37270 - TCPI PSC-00584 93.638

Total - CFDA #93.638 - ACA Transforming

Clinical Practice Initiative: Practice

Transformation Networks (PTNs)

Direct Grant:

37015 - Tobacco Use Prevention

ToUl - CFDA #93.735 - State Public Health

Approaches for Ensuring Quitline Capacity

NU58DP005338 93.735

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through State of New Hampshire:

37048 • National Diabetes Prevention Program 1042855

37068 - Technical Assistance Network for Rural 1043188

Health Clinics

37200 • Public Health Program Services Support PO# 1031592

Total - CFDA #93.757 - State Public Health

Actions to Prevent Diabetes, Heart Disease,

Obesity and Assoc. Rbk Factors

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through Missouri Department of Health and

Senior Services:

37130-MO~HEAL C3I5I99O01

Passed through Rhode Island Department of Health:

37140 • R1 Epidemiological Support 7549784

Total - CFDA #93.758 - Preventive Health and

Health Services Block Grant Funded Soiey

with Prevention and Public Health Funds (PPHF)

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Lakes Region Partnership:
37245 - NH DSRJP Region 5 APW/LRP/10.20.16

Total - CFDA #93.779 - Centers for Medicare

and Medicaid Services (CMS) Research,

Demonstrations and Evaluations

93.757

93.757

93.757

28,320

128.006

156326

93.758

93.758

93.779

38.452

38,452

63,449

63,449

142,265

74,676

667.349

884390

26,257

132.454

158,711

42.614

42,614

Sec notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2017

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor
Program Title

Agency or

Pass-through
Number

Federal Passed

CFDA> Through to
Number Subrecipients

Federal

Eipendltures

(NTP5264M04500824007

PKF6I

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED:

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Department of Public Health:

HIV Care

Total - CFDA #93.815 - Domestic Ebola

Supplement to the ELC

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Department of Public Health:

37152-Ebola CONOPS

Total - CFDA #93.817 - Hospital Preparedness

Program (HPP) Ebola Preparedness and

Response Activities

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through State of New Hampshire:

37068 - Technical Assistance Network for Rural

Health Clinics

Total • CFDA #93.913 - Grants to States for

Operation of OfTices of Rural Health

Direct Grants:

37191 - HIV Integrated Planning

37194 - RWHAP ACE Health Training

37327 - CHATT Planning TA

Pass-through Grant:

Passed throu^ Boston Public Health Commission:

37170 - Quality Assurance

Total - CFDA #93.914 - HIV Emergency Relief

Project Grants

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Department of Public Health:

HIV Care

P0« 1043188

U69HA3QI44

U69HA30143

U69HA30795

Agreement @3-01-16

9

9

INTF-4971 ->^04500824092 9

93.815

93.817

93.913

3.914

93.914

93.914

3.914

28,320

30,000

S8320

274.385

274.385

75,166

75,166

34,468

34,468

499,114

396.859

65,604

102.435

1,064,012

3.917 285.562

Total - CFDA #93.917 - HIV Care Formula

Grants 285,562
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2017

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor
Proeram Title

Agency or

Pass-through
Number

Federal Passed

CFDA Through to
Number Subrecipients

Federal

Expeodltures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through the State of Vermont:

37212 - VT LOL Survey Contract #31786

Total - CFDA #93.919 • Cooperative

Agreements for State-Based Comprehensive

Breast and Cervical Cancer Early Detection

Programs

Direct Grant:

36967 - Healthy Start Performance Project UF5MC26845

Total - CFDA #93.926 - Healthy Start Initiative

93.919

93.926

Direct Grant:

36945-CDC CBAFYI5-FVI9 U63PS004406

Total - CFDA #93.939 - HIV Prevention

Activities - NGO Based

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through the State of Massachusett<(:

37153 - CoRECT Study PRF61

Total - CFDA #93.943 - Epidemiologic

Research Studies of Acquired

Immunodeflciiency System (AIDS) and

Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

Infection in Selected Groups

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through South County Hospital Healthcare System:

93.939

93.943

37091 - South County Health Equity Zone
Passed through Vermont Department of Health

37212 - Vermont Health Evaluation

Total - CFDA #93.945 - Assistance Programs

for Chronic Disease Prevention and Control

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through State of Rhode Island:

36801 - Prevention Resource Center

Passed through New Hamp. Prevention Certification
Board of New Hampshire:

37168-NHPCB Workforce

Total - CFDA #93.959 - Block Grants for

Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse

Sec notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

Agreem

Contra

331684

ent @ 5-M5

ct #31786

93.945

93.945

4 93.959

93.959

13,830

13.830

2,138,551

2,138351

878,721

878,721

64,927

64,927

17,099

26.412

43,511

184,156

24,243

208399
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JSI Research and Traioing Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2017

Agency or

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor Pass<througb
Prosram Title Number

Federal

CFDA

Number

Passed

Through to
Subrcciplents

Federal

Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED

Pass-through Grant: •

Passed through Arizona Family Health Partnership:

37328 - AFHP CT Screening 17-JSI1 93.977 - 826

Total - CFDA **92.911 ■ Sexually Transmitted

Diseases (STD) Prevention and Control Grants • 826

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through Tri-County Health Department:

37106 • Tri-County Health Programming Agreement @ 9-25-15 93.994 - 40

Passed through Global Evaluation & Applied Research

Solutions, Inc.:

37236 - MCH/SMS Retreat TA APW/GEARS/10,7.16 93.994 - 2,546

1  Total - CFDA 1^93.994 - Maternal & Child

Health Services Block Grant to the States
- 2.586

TOTAL - U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SERVICES $ S 13,688,441

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY:

Direct Grants:

United States Coast Guard •

37076 • Nafl. Life Jacket Wear Rate 3315FAN1502.05 97.012 $ s (28,695)

37196 - Nafl. Estimate of Life Jacket Wear Rate 3316FAN160206 97.012 8.474 104,533
37302 - Nat'l. Estimate of Life Jacket Wear Rate 33I7FAN170210 97.012 8,237 161,946

Total CFDA ̂7.012 - Boating Safety Financial

Assistance 16,711 237,784

TOTAL - U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND

SECURITY S  16.711 s 237,784

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 32



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEIERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2i 117

Tederal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor

Program Title

VS. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE:

Pass-through Grants:

.  Passed through State of New Hampshire:

37205 - NH Juvenllle Court Video

37250 - Juvenille Diversion Evaluation

Total • CFDA #16.540 - Juvenile Justice and

Delinquency Prevention - Allocation to States

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Agency or

Pass-through

Number

Agrccmcni @ 9-0!-15

Federal Passed

CFDA Through to

Number Subreclplents

Federal

Expenditures

16.540

16.540

13,376

30,454

43,830

43,830

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Food Insecurity Nutrition Incentive (FINI):

37257 - FINI Evaluation PRF6I 10.331 ^

Total CFDA #10.331 - Food Insecurity

Nutrition Incentive Grants Program $

Pass-through Grant:
I

Passed through Massachusetts Dept. of Elementary

and Secondary Education:

37167-ESE Allergies Manual Agreement @ 3-25-16 10.560

Total CFDA #10.560 - State Administrative

Expenses for Child Nutrition

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through State of Vermont:

37155 - VT SNAP Education Evaluation 30754 i 0.561
Total CFDA #10.561 - State Administrative

Matching Grants for the Supplemental

Nutrition Assistance Program

$  36.504

36,504

TOTAL - U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

99

99

31,923

31,923

68,526

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 33



JSI Research aod Training Institute^ Inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2017

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor

Program Title

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF STATE:

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Dreams Innovation Challenge:

37188-DREAMS

Total CFDA #19.029 - The U.S. President's

Emergency Plan for AIDS Relief Programs

Direct Grant:

37244 - Russia P2P

Agency or

Pass-through

Number

Federal Passed

CFDA Through to Federal

Number Subreclpients Expenditures

S-LMAQM-16-CA-II03 19.029 $ •25,325,653 S 30.290,777

S-RS500-I6-CA-179

Total CFDA #19.900 - AEECA/ESF PD Programs

TOTAL - U.S. DEPARTMENT OF STATE

19.900

25325,653 30390.777

96.530

96.530

$ 25325.653 $ 30387307

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE:

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Regents of the University of Michigan;

37303 - Cape Cod Coastal

Total CFDA #11.419 - Coastal Zone

Management Administration Awards

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

11.419 S 2.259

2359

2359

TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS $ 104.545.000 $ 240.595.875

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 34



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

September 30,2017

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the
federal grant activity of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. under programs of the federal
government for the year ended September 30, 2017. The information in this Schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the
operations of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present
the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of JSI Research and Training Institute,
Inc.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(1) Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained
in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or
are limited as to reimbursement.

(2) Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) numbers and pass-through entity
identifying numbers are presented when available.

NOTE 3 - INDIRECT COST RATE

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost
rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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Norman R. Fougere, Jr. CPA
99 HERiTAOE Lane

Duxbury, ma 02332-4334

FOUGERE

Certified l'^ul»lic

A c c o II n t a 11 t

PUONE; 781-934-0460

FAX: 781-934-0606

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AI^ AUDIT OF FINANQAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors

JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated
financial statements of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate ("Organization"),
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of September 30, 2017, and
the related consolidated statements of activities, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the consolidated financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
April 23,2018.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered JSI
Research and Training Institute, Inc. and its affiliate's internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
and Affiliates's intemal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Organi^tion's intemal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the Organization's financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify ail deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Mattera

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether JSI Research and Training Institute,
Inc. and Affiliate's consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement, we
performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

This purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization's
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Duxbury, Massachusetts
April 23, 2018
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NORMAN R. FOUCERB, JR. CPA RBSHERIB PHONE: 781-934-0460
99 l-lERiTAOE Lane Fax: 781-934-0606
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Certificil Pulilic

A c c o u n 1 a II t

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR

PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.'s compliance with' the types of
compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct
and material effect on each of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.'s major federal programs
for the year ended September 30, 2017. JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.'s major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibiiity

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of JSI Research and Training
Institute, Inch's major federal programs based on . our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable
to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.'s compliance
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with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of JSI
Research and Training Institute, Inc.'s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with
the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2017.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we
considered JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.'s intemal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program
to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
intemal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of intemal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of JSI Research and Training
Institute, Inc.'s intemal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in intemal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was.not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) maintains a different fiscal year (June 30) and has its own stand
alone audit performed in accordance with the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). However, the consolidated financial statements contain the
combined activity of JSI Research and Training, Institute and World Education, Inc.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

/

Duxbury, Massachusetts
April 23,2018
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and AfHIiate
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

September 30, 2017

SECTION I - Summary of Auditors' Results:

Financial Statements

The type of report issued on the financial statements:

Internal control over financial reporting:

• Material weaknesses identified?

•  Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

• Material weaknesses identified?

•  Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major
programs:

Any audit findings which are required to be reported under
2 CFR section 200.516(a):

•  Identification of major programs:

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low risk auditee under 2 CFR
Section 200.520

Unmodified opinion

No

None reported

No

No

No

Unmodified opinion

No

USAID Foreign Assistance for
for Programs Overseas
CFDA #98.001

The U.S. President's

Emergency Plan for AIDS
Relief Programs
CFDA #19.029

$3,000,000

Yes
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STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR'S FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

There were no reportable findings or questioned costs for the year ended September 30,2016.
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JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

Bo^rd of Trustees

Alexander K. Baker, MBA

Chief Operating Officer

John Snow, Inc.

David E. Bloom, M.A., Ph.D.

Clarence James Gamble Professor of Economics and Demography
Harvard School of Public Health

Patricia Fairchild, M.A.

Vice President

John Snow, Inc.

Sandro Galea, MD, MPH, DrPH

Dean and Robert A. Knox Professor

Boston University School of Public Health

Leiand B. Goldberg

Resolution Capital

Carolyn Hart, MSPH

Director, JSI/Washington

John Snow, Inc.

Louis Kaplow, J.D., Ph.D.

Finn M.W. Caspersen & Household Professor of Law and Economics

Harvard Law School

Joel H. Lamstein, MS

President and CEO

John Snow, Inc. and V^orld Education, Inc.

Ken Ollvola, M.C.P., M-Arch

Director, JSI/Boston International Group

John Snow, Inc.

Paul Osterman, Ph.D.

Nanyang Technological University (NTU) Professor of Human Resources and Management

Sloan School of Management at M.l.T.

Mike Useem, M.A., Ph.D.

William and Jacalyn Egan Professor of Management

Wharton School at University of Pennsylvania



Rachel S. Kohn, MSW, MPH
JSl Research & Training Insl.. Inc.. 501 South Street, Bow. New Hampshire 03304, 603-573'3300 rkohn@jsi.com

Education

School of The Museum of Fine Arts, Boston, Massachusetts

Graphic Design Certificate. December, 2008

Boston University School of Public Health, Boston, Massachusetts

Epidemiology, September, 1998 -

Boston University School of Social Work, Boston, Massachusetts
M.S.iV.. Macro Social Work, May. 1997

University of Massachusetts, amherst, Massachusetts

B.A., Social Thought and Political Economy. May, 1989

Experience

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc., Boston, Massachusetts and Bow, New Hampshire
Senior Consultant, November 1998 to present
Areas of technical expertise include; project management; needs assessment; program evaluation; survey research design and
administration; technical assistance for program-level and client-level program implementation; all aspects of qualitative and
quantitative data collection, management and analysis; grant writing, and report writing and dissemination. Content expertise
includes evidence-base strategies to address substance abuse prevention and treatment; treatment drug courts; and prisoner
reentry programs. These technical skills are complimented by extensive experience in graphic design with a focus on data
presentation, visualization and health communication strategies.

Program Evaluation and Needs Assessment projects:
Current Protects:

Manchester Calculating Adequate Systems Tool
Project Director • Support the Mayor in the City of Manchester to identify service capacity and gaps; establish priority
strategies and develop a plan for improving the delivery of substance use disorder services in Manchester. Facilitate a
highly collaborative process in concert with the Mayor's office, the Manchester Health Department, and Makin' It
Happen Coalition for Resilient Youth, Inc. (MIH), to quantify the current capacity and need for additional services,
utilize the Calculating Adequate Systems Tool (CAST) developed by SAMHSA, or a similar, to quantify the service
gaps and needs for the City.

NH Center for Excellence Addressing Alcohol and other Drugs
Data and Evaluation Team Leader for this state-wide technical assistance and resource center for the implementation
of evidence-based interventions in alcohol and other drug prevention, intervention, treatment and recovery services.
Oversee a team of five data and evaluation specialists tasked with providing technical assistance to the DHHS Bureau
of Drug and Alcohol Services; their grantees and other state and local stakeholders. Provided logistical oversight and
support for the biennial implementation of the YRBS in coordination with state partners, and facilitate additional
analysis that support making data-informed decisions at the community and state level.

New Hampshire Juvenile Court Diversion Network
Project Director - with funding from New Hampshire Department of Children, Youth & Families, lead the
development of a Juvenile Court Diversion Center for Excellence to educate policymakers and stakeholders on the
core elements and best practices ofdiversion programs; research juvenile diversion best-practices; establish
communication and outreach strategies to garner community support for juvenile diversion; and develop strategies to
expand and sustain court diversion programs. Conduct research on the recidivism rates of court diversion participants
and provide on-going technical assistance on expansion and integration of evidence-based practices.

Hillsborough County Adult Treatment Drug Court
Evaluator - Design and oversee a utilization-focused evaluation plan for the SAMHSA Center for Substance Abuse
Treatment-funded Hillsborough County Drug Court (HCDC). In parallel, implement a Department of Justice Bureau
of Justice Assistance-funded cost-benefit analysis of the CCDC using the Transactional and Institutional Cost Analysis
approach along with a quasi-experimental study design to compare outcome result between participants and
comparable peers.

R. Kohn 1
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Community-Based Coalition Evaluation
Evalualor - Provide program evaluation and monitoring services for local substance abuse prevention coalitions and
Drug-Free Community Grantees. Scope of work includes developing evaluation plans based on logic modeling,
implementing program monitoring and evaluation surveys, collecting and reporting outcome measures using YRBS or
comparable data sources, and local strategy/activity program evaluation.

Cheshire County Adult Treatment Drug Court
Evaluator- Data collection and evaluation for the SAMHSA Center for Substance Abuse Treatment-funded Cheshire

County Drug Court (CCDC). In parallel, implement a Department of Justice Bureau of Justice Assistance-funded cost-
benefit analysis of the CCDC using the Transactional and Institutional Cost Analysis approach along with a quasi-
experimental study design to compare outcome result between participants and comparable peers.

Dover Youth to Youth - One Voice Youth Empowerment Model
Evaluator - Work with the Dover Youth to Youth, innovators of the One Voice Youth Empowerment Model, to
establish evidence of program elTecliveness. Evaluation enhancement efTorts were funded by Center for Substance
Abuse Prevention's Center for the Application of Prevention Technologies (CAPT) Service-lo-Science program
resulting in recognition by the NH Expert Panel as an evidence-based program.

Institute for Health and Recovery - Project RENEW
Evaluation Advisor-SAMHSA/CSAT-funded ReEntry Network for Empowering Women project (RENEW).
Responsibilities include evaluation design, training of program staff in monitoring, evaluation and data reporting, and
analysis and presentation of evaluation data.

Keystone Hall - Family-Based Prisoner Substance Abuse Treatment Program
Evaluator - Development and implementation of a process and outcome evaluation plan and customized MS Access
data collection system for a Bureau of Justice Assistance-funded trauma informed-treatment and re-entry case
management program for incarcerated women in five New Hampshire county correctional facilities.

Adolescent Substance Abuse Treatment - Seacoast Youth Services

Evaluator - Seacoast Youth Services OJJDP-funded Adolescent Substance Abuse Treatment program targeting high-
risk youth and Project Adventure, a behavior modification program that uses proactive strategies to provide
alternatives to high risk behaviors. Designed a utilization-focused evaluation plan and tools for multiple programs
provided by SYS.

NH Tobacco & Obesity Policy Project
Evaluator for implementing high-impact public policy in the domains of licensed child care settings and public
schools. TOPP evaluation activities included an annual needs assessment and survey of licensed childcare providers,
evaluation of a 3-module training protocol, and an assessment of public school wellness policy adoption and
implementation.

Assertive Adolescent Family Treatment - Cohort 2 & 3
Evalualor - SAMHSA/CSAT-funded Assertive Adolescent Family Treatment (AAFT-2 & -3) for Child & Family
Services Adolescent Substance Abuse Treatment Program, a program designed to provide substance abuse treatment
services New Hampshire adolescents in Merrimack, Hillsborough and western Rockingham counties.

J

New Hampshire Strategic Prevention Framework State incentive Grant
Providing local evaluation services and technical support to two regional coalitions implementing the New Hampshire
SPF-SIG assessment, planning and implementation process to address underage and binge drinking among youth and
young adults in each region.

CAB Health and Recovery Services, Inc.
Evaluator- Provide evaluation and data management services for multiple SAMHSA/CSAT-Rinded substance abuse
treatment and prevention programs including: MET/CBT-5; Essex County Juvenile Drug Court; Young Offenders
Reentry Program; Women RISE; and Protect Encounter. i
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Environmental Health Research Projects:
Prairie Grove HealCh Study
Project Director for study designed to assess current and historical health exposure and status of children diagnosed with
cancer living in Prairie Grove, Arkansas. Ala collected included extensive residential, occupational and health histories
of the children and families involved in a legal case against local chicken feed industry. The investigation was designed
to review the higher than expected rales of childhood cancers which may be linked to exposure to inorganic arsenic
found in chicken litter spread on farmland surrounding the town.

NH Environmental Public Health Tracking Program
Project management for the New Hampshire DHHS Environmental Public Health Tracking program development of and
implementation plan for a comprehensive tracking and surveillance system. Over seeing Advisory Council and
workgroup coordination and facilitation, public health workforce assessment, environmental policy review, and one-day
conference planning and facilitation.

New Hampshire Biomonitoring Planning Grant
Facilitator for the development of a plan for a human biomonitoring program for the New Hampshire Department of
Health & Human Services, OfTice of Community and Public Health, Public Health Laboratories. Coordinated the

Mercury Biomonitoring work group to develop and implement a human biomonitoring program for Mercury exposure
among populations at risk in New Hampshire.

Mobile Bay Mercury Study
Project Director for study designed to determine if Mobile County residents have higher levels of mercury in their bodies
and whether their exposure to mercury came from eating fish contaminated with mercury. The goals of the study are to
verify previous findings of mercury contamination detected in the area and to determine if there is variation within the
levels and rates of exposure to mercury across the county.

Weymouth Community Health Assessment
Project manager for Weymouth Community Needs Assessment designed to identify unmet health needs in the Town and
devise a plan to decrease risk factors that are preventable for respiratory illness, mental illness, high risk behaviors,
cardiovascular disease, home accidents, and potential environmental exposures from the South Weymouth Naval Air
Station.

Toms River

Project Director for study designed to assess current and historical health status of children and mothers in Toms River,
New Jersey by collecting extensive residential, occupational and health histories of families involved in a class action
case against local industry. The investigation was designed to review the higher than expected rates of childhood cancers
which were suspected of being linked to local industry and contamination of air as and water sources. Findings from this
study contributed to a substantial settlement awarded to the families.

Cape Cod Women's Health Study
Coordination of survey research component of environmental and behavioral implications on breast cancer and disease
prevalence on Cape Cod. Established remote office location in Hyannis where the telephone interviews are conducted.
Interviewer recruitment, training and management, instrument design, implementation and data management between
Hyannis and Boston office.

Associations | boards
National Association of Drug Court Professionals; American Evaluation Association

Computer Skills

Adobe Creative Suite: Illustrator, Photoshop, InDesign, Flash, Dreamweaver; MS OfTlce Suite: Word, Excel, Publisher,
Access; SPSS; Social Network Applications.
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Debra L. Love
JSl Research & Training Institute. Inc., d.b.a. Community Health Institute Debbie_love@jsi.com
50! South Street. 2"^Floor, Bow. New Hampshire 03304 (603) 573-3310

Education

Plymouth State College, Plymouth, New Hampshire
B.S.. Business, Psychology and Health
Interdisciplinary Studies: ! 985-1990

Institute of Children's Literature, West Redding, Connecticut
Diploma: fVriting. 1994-1996

at-Home Professions, Fort Collins, Colorado
Certification: Medical Transcriptionist — March to August 2004

Certified NH Notary Public. 2008 to Present

Experience

JSI Research & Training Institute, inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute, Bow, New Hampshire
Office Manager. January 2016 to present
Project Coordinator/Manager, 2001 to 2016

Hillsborough County Drug Court (HCDC)
Provide support in the program evaluation of the HCDC program, which is expanding the substance use disorder
treatment capacity in their Superior Court through the development of the HCDC. The goal is to reduce recidivism by
breaking the criminogenic patterns of behavior related to substance abuse and addiction among high risk/high need non
violent offenders.

NH Center for Excellence

Provide fiscal, logistical, administrative and data management for a statewide technical assistance resource center for
evidence-based practice in substance abuse services. The Center establishes a base of evidence-based practices in
prevention, developing a learning collaborative of networks and practitioners to engage in systems change to support
evidence-based practice, and establishes data dissemination systems to ensure that data is both an input to and output of
evidence-based practice. An expert panel endorses evidence-based practice selections, outcome measurement designs,
and the process by which promising practices may develop a base of evidence of effectiveness In New Hampshire.

NH Immunization Marketing
Provides project support and assists with social marketing content management to develop a creative health marketing
campaign, for the NH Immunization Program, that identifies priority audiences, best-practice outreach strategies, partner
communication channels, effective educational outreach materials to advance the understanding of the health benefits of
vaccines and immunizations and increase NH immunization rates. The team will review existing state and national
materials, and create new graphics and logos.

NH Tobacco Addiction Treatment Services (TATS)
Serve as Project Assistant for the NH TATS project. This contract serves as the hub for the NH Tobacco Resource
Center, which incorporates: I) the NH Smokers' Helpline offering free and confidential counseling and services in
English, Spanish and Portuguese; 2) the promotion of the NH Smokers' Helpline through a variety of traditional and
non-traditional media outlets; and 3) www.trytostopnh.org, a web-based resource forNH tobacco users and 4)
QuitWorks-NH a resource for NH clinicians working with their patients to quit using tobacco by providing them with a
single portal for referring their patients who use tobacco for state-of-the-art treatment (www.quitworknsnh.org). This
initiative also includes the continued development ofa consortium of health insurers who are willing to promote TTS-
NH to their subscribers directly and endorse QuitWorks-NH to their contracted health care providers.
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Injury Prevention Professional Trainings
Project Manager for the Injury Prevention Program, Division of Public Health Services and the Injury Prevention
Community Planning Group to provide planning, promoting and logistical support and evaluation for professional
trainings with the goal of supporting appropriate activities that educate the public health workforce, policymakers and
the public on the value of evidenced-based injury prevention measures in reducing preventable deaths and the severity of
injuries as well as health care costs.

Quality Improvement in Enhancing the System of Services for Children and Youth with Epilepsy
Provide logistical and administrative support to HRSA's Maternal and Child Health Bureau to assist Innovative
Strategies and Promising Practices grantees to improve the system of care in medically-underserved and rural areas for
children and youth with epilepsy. The purpose of the overall initiative is to explore mechanisms to spread improvement
of the quality of services for children and youth with epilepsy (CYE) in the medical home and to strengthen the co-
management relationship between the medical home and the specialty network. The project aims are to: I) Create a
three-session learning collaborative for grantees; 2) Analyze the results of the evaluation compiled from prior learning
collaboratives and design a strategy to incorporate continuous learning improvement; and 3) Conduct a comprehensive
analysis of the learning collaborative.

NH Conference on Aging
Project Manager for the New Hampshire Bureau of Elderly and Adult's (BEAS) Conference on Aging. Oversight of this
project includes fiscal management, generation of funding through sponsorship and exhibitors, negotiation of conference
expenses within, facilitation of planning committee meetings, coordination of logistics specific to the needs of the target
population, and providing BEAS with recommendations. Other scope of work includes building website with online
registration form; database creation; soliciting sponsors and exhibits; executing speaker and site contracts; coordination
of registration; oversight of graphic design; generating weekly reports for client and post-conference survey and
analysis. The Conference on Aging is an annual event whose goal is to provide information, education and training for
older adults that promotes awareness, self-determination, advocacy, collaboration and independence.

Strategic Prevention Framework - SIG Region B, F, J & I
Provided administrative support for a state-defined region to plan for and implement evidence-based strategies to
prevention and reduce alcohol use and abuse among 12 to 17 year olds. The regional initiative is part of a statewide
Strategic Prevention Framework (SPF) funded by the U.S. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration
that engages communities in a five step process to assess, build capacity for, plan, implement and evaluate strategies to
reduce high risk alcohol consumption and its harmful consequence.

National Health Service Corps (NHSC)
Data Coordinator for a major initiative to collect 'Uniform Data Systems' (UDS) information from all National Health
Service Corps sites across the country, which do not receive direct federal grants. The data collected describes the
financial and operational parameters of the health centers, and forms the basis of NHSC management decisions and
reports to Congress, as well as informing the health centers of their relative performance. The project involves extensive
data management and technical editing of reported data as well as the development of unique software to collect,
manage, and screen the data electronically.

New England Rural Health RoundTable (NERHRT)
Project Manager for the NERHRT. Responsibilities included maintaining database with dues paid members and with
lapsed memberships. Coordinated production of the newsletter and managed layout, and printing. Processed all mailings
including annual dues, conference announcements, board mailings, press releases, RFPs, and newsletters. Maintained
financial records. Communicated regularly with NERHRT researcher and web site manager. Answered the NERHRT
dedicated phone line and processed all inquiries from Board members, association members and individuals seeking
information about the association. Logistics coordinator for two annual retreats, a conference, and annual board meeting
and provided assistance with organization of annual symposium. Provided assistance to Executive Director.

Muitistate Learning Collaborative
Administrative support for the RWJF-funded Muitistate Learning Collaborative (MLC-3), a national collaborative effort
to improve public health services and the health of communities by linking public health processes to health outcomes.
Manage two learning collaboratives addressing childhood obesity and health improvement planning, and tobacco
cessation among pregnant women and workforce development. Developed assessment tools and conduct public health
network capacity assessments to inform NH public health regionalization process.
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Rachel Kohn Evaluator 102,960.00 12% $12,350.00

Debbie Love Data Manager 58,500.00 18% $10,400.00

«
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES

Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services

105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271^738 l-80(W04-0909

Fax:603-271-6105 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
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October 28, 2015

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. NH 03301

(Ke-kwo1)\/C.

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services,
to enter into retroactive, sole source agreements with the vendors below, for the provision of clinical
and evaluation services in support of the Hillsborough County - South's Drug Court expansion effort, in
an amount not to exceed $851,622, effective October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2018, upon
Governor and Executive Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds supporting this request are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2016,
and are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2017 upon Fiscal Committee approval, and in
2018 and 2019 upon legislative approval of the next biennial budget and continued appropriation of
funds in the future operating budget, with authority to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years
through the Budget Office, without further approval from Govemor and Executive Council, if needed
and justified.

05-95-49-491510-5090 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS. TREATMENT
DRUG COURT GRANT

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center at Community Council
100 West Pearl Street, Nashua, NH 03060

Vendor#154112

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number Amount

2016 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sendees 49155090 $184,277.50

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 49155090 $243,870.00 -

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sen/ices 49155090 $243,870.00

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 49155090 $ 59.592.50

Price Limitation $731,610.00

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc. dba Community Health Institute
501 South Street. Bow, NH 03304

Vendor #161611 -B001

Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Class Title Job Number Amount

2016 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sendees 49155090 $ 31,383.00

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 49155090 $ 40,004.00

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 49155090 $ 40,004.00

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 49155090 $ 8,621.00

Price Limitation $120,012.00



Her Excellency. Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of 2

EXPLANATION

This request to retroactively enter into two sole source agreements is made in response to the
Department's receipt of additional Federal funding to support the efforts of the Hillsborough County
South Drug Court. In September, the Department received a three (3) year grant to expand substance
abuse treatment capacity within this specific Drug Court. The Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration grant is specifically designed to work with the Drug Court's existing community
partners. The grant application required the support of the current community partners, including the
two primary contractors already working with this Drug Court, the Greater Nashua Mental Health Center
and the Community Health Institute.

These agreements, combined with the existing resources that support the Hillsborough County
South Drug Court, will allow more Individuals to be served, obtain treatment, and to pursue a successful
path to recovery and rehabilitation. The services to be provided include individual and group therapy,
the use of specially designed, evidence-based curriculums. and evaluation services to assess and
ensure the continued effectiveness of the model and the success of program participants. This model
of treatment has been proven to improve recovery, reduce recidivism with respect to criminal activity,
and reduce the need for incarceration for individuals experiencing addiction.

V

The agreements contain renewal language that allows the Department the right to renew the
agreements for up to three (3) additional years, subject to the continued availability of Federal funds
and satisfactory performance of services.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, the Department would be
not be in compliance with the Federal regulations pertaining to its grant award, and additional
individuals would not receive these highly effective services - leaving them to continue their struggle
with addiction and their involvement with New Hampshire's criminal justice system.

Area Served: Hillsborough County-South

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the US Department of Health and Human Services,
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, SAMHSA Treatment Drug Courts,
Catalog of Federal and Domestic Assistance Number, 93.243, Federal Award Identification Number
(FAIN) # TI026a92.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Kathleen A. Dunn. MPH

Associate Commissioner-

Approved by:
Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opporiunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Subject: Evaluation Services - Hillsborough County Drue Court Expansion
FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Community Based Care Services
Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.. dba Community
Health Institute

1.4 Contractor Address

SO I South Street, Second Floor
Bow. NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-573-3303

1.6 Account Number

05-95-49-491510-5090

1.7 Cwnpletion Date

J^^£om«er 30. 2018 yV
1.8 Price Limitation

$120,012

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Eric Borrin, Director of Contracts and Procurement

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9558

1. 11 Contraetdr.Si

etit: State of1.13 Acknowl

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Jonathan Stewart, Director

.County of

On Octohtr 3^^ before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be thv pcrsor whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature

ISear,

fN tarv dblic or Justice of the Peace

1. 13.2 Niunc and Titl^f Notary or Justice of the Peace
OEBRA U LOVE, Notary PubOc

MyCommte8ionB{ptreaOctoborl6.2018
1.14 State .Agency Signature

Approval bytheW.H. Department of Administration, Division of PersonneU# applicable)

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

1.16 Approval by theN.H. Department of Administration, Division of PersonneU# applicable)

By: Director, On:

hy the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (i/applicable)

I lk I[5

17 Approval

1.18 Approval by the Governor ̂ (fCxecutive Council (^Inapplicable)

By: \ I On:

Page 1 of 4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block I. I ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more panicularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contraaor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds, (n the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving (he Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor

shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age. sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulation s of the Un ited States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further t^ees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all pasonnci engaged in the Savices shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or otha person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procuremenL administration or performance of this
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the Slate
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days af)er giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. data/access/confidentiality/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whetha finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the Slate or purchased with ftinds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

- Page

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ('Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
desaibed in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neitha an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers* compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACrS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contrartor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of.
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which Immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or prc^erty damage, in amounts
of not less than SI .OOO.OOOpa occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 haein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licens^ in the Slate of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9. or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(" Workers' Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable rcnewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated haein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable Slate of New Hampshire Workas'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Slate to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to en force any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
Slate law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throu^out the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall In no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Evaluation Services: Hlllsborough County Drug Court Supporting Services

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Services to be Delivered

1.1 General Services

The Contractor shall provide evaluation services in support of the expansion of the
Hillsborough County Drug Court Program (HCDC), pursuant to a grant received by the
Department from the US Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration's (SAMHSA), under the Grants to Expand Substance Abuse Treatment
Capacity In Adult and Family Drug Courts (TI-15-002 Individual Grant Awards). The
Department's applicable grant application abstract will serve as a guiding document for
all services and responsibilities of the Contractor, with respect to this grant award, not
otherwise described within this agreement.

The Contractor shall work collaboratively with the following entitles and organizations
participating in the HCDC:

•  Southern Hillsborough County Superior Court;
•  Southern Hillsborough County Attorney's Office;
•  NH Public Defender's Program; ^
•  NH Department of Corrections - Probation/Parole Department;
• Greater Nashua Mental Health Center (GNMHC); and
•  Nashua Police Department.

The Contractor's responsibility in the expansion of the HCDC includes but is not limited
to:

•  Providing staff to lead the design and development of Drug Court Process and
outcome evaluations;

•  Coordinating and monitoring ongoing data collection of the Drug Court;
•  Providing strategies for monitoring fidelity to evidence-based practices used;
•  Supporting ongoing learning and quality improvement of data collection for Drug

Court; and

•  Providing a representative to the Drug Court Team to report on outcomes.

1.2 Data Collection and Management Services

1.2.1 The Contractor shall work with the Drug Court Team to tailor a data collection
and data management approach that is highly responsive to the Center for
Substance Abuse Treatment's (CSAT) Government Performance and Results
Act (GPRA) data reporting requirements. This shall include but not be limited
to the development of an Evaluation Plan and Data Management Protocols
within thirty days of contract approval.

1.2.2 The Contractor shall complete development of a database for the NH Drug
Courts that complies with reporting needs associated with this agreement's
Federal funding source, in addition to the Drug Court's current funding source
within the Bureau of Justice Administration. The Contractor shall ensure the
database provides easily accessible information for the Drug Court Team, as

Community Health Institute/JSi Exhibit A - Scope of Services Contracts Initial?^^
October 2015 //1 '7 > /
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Evaluation Services: HlllslMrough County Drug Court Supporting Services

Exhibit A

well as for current and future funding agencies and programs. Information
contained in the database shall include documenting at minimum:

Client intakes;

Treatment dosage;

Drug test results;
Number of group and individual sessions participated in by the client;
Number of appearances before the judge the client makes;
The client's peer-to-peer support group activities;
The client's payment of program fees;
Sobriety days;
Percentage of compliant weeks.
Sanctions or incentives passed down;
In-program violations or re-arrests; and
Client overall movement through three Drug Court phases toward
graduation or discharge, and the number of weeks the client spends in
each.

1.2.3 The Contractor shall collect data and monitor program performance through
this database, and shall ensure access to the same is provided to the Drug
Court Team Coordinator - an employee of the GNHMC. The Contractor shall
ensure data collected documents client weekly activity sufficient for the Drug
Court to monitor fidelity to the Drug Court Model.

1.2.4 The Contractor shall use the following data collection tools for the screening,
assessment and/or outconrte evaluation of Drug Court participants:

•  Ohio Risk Assessment Survey (GRAS) (intake and discharge):
•  Mental Health Screening Form (MHSF - III) (intake and discharge);
•  Addiction Severity Index (ASI) (intake and discharge);
•  GPRA Data Collection Instrument (DCI) (intake, six-month and discharge):
•  Drug Court Weekly Activity Database (weekly); and
•  Client Feedback Survey (annually).

1.2.5 The Contractor shall report to CSAT performance data that was collected using
the DCI. and ensure that this data is accessible to program staff on an ongoing
basis, in combination with the GRAS, MHSF - III and ASI data.

1.2.6 The Contractor's data manager, in combination with the Drug Court's case
manager, shall use the CSAT's Common Data Platform (CDP) web system to
report client-level performance data on a variety of measures, including but not
limited to:

•  Client substance abuse;

•  Criminal activity;
•  Social, work and living environments;
•  Social and family connections;
•  Treatment, engagement and adherence; and
•  Education and employment status.

Community Health Institute/JSI
October 2015
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1.2.7 The Contractor's data manager shall verify that DCI data entered on the GDP is
complete, and shall discuss any discrepancies at regularly scheduled review
meetings to ensure data is submitted within the required seven-day window.

1.2.8 The Contractor shall submit the required GPRA data to the Program Director
fifteen (15 days) prior to the SAMHSA due date for approval. Upon DHHS
approval, the Contractor shall send the reports directly to SAMHSA by the
applicable due date(s).

1.3 Data Quality Assurance

1.3.1 The Contractor shall use Microsoft Access and SPSS to compile and analyze
Drug Court evaluation data. The Contractor shall export all data into a single
SPSS data file, including ASI data, so that client-level analysis is conducted
across the breadth of available variables and scales.

1.3.2 The Contractor shall store electronic data on a secured server that is subject to
the Department's review and approval.

1.3.3 The Contractor's data manager shall conduct ongoing data quality monitoring
as data is entered, and again through a systematic data cleaning process prior
to data analysis. Questionable entries on DCI surveys, bgs or tracking forms
shall be reviewed on a case-by-case basis with the Drug Court Team as
needed.

1.3.4 The Contractor shall develop regular evaluation reports, in a timely manner, to
facilitate program devebpment and responsiveness to Federal reporting
requirements. These reports shall synthesize data for more efficient review by
program administrators, point out trends, and provide ongoing interpretation of
program data. The reports shall also provide ongoing feedback, on program
activities and client characteristics, in the form of tables and/or supporting
narratives.

1.3.5 The Contractor shall develop a final report that provides information for all
enrolled clients, and includes a more in-depth analysis.

1.4 Training

1.4.1 The Contractor shall train clinical staff and case managers, participating in the
Drug Court Team and providing direct clinical services to program participants,
on evaluation protocols and procedures.

1.4.2 The Contractor shall ensure that at least one (1) member of its staff performing
services under this contract attend the annual National Associatbn of Drug
Court Professionals conference

1.5 Disparity Impact Statement

1.5.1 The Contractor shall complete the Disparity Impact Statement (DIS) and
forward to the Program Director for approval by November 15, 20.15. Upon
receiving approval, the Contractor shall submit an electronic copy of the DIS to
the Government Project Office and the Grants Management Specialist no later
than November 30. 2015. to the addresses below:

Llovd.Rober1s@samhsa.hhs.QOv

Helen.Zhou@samhsa.hhs.QOV
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2. Population Served
The Contractor shall serve tvw) populations within the HCDC. The current program
population represents the current HCDC capacity to sen/e 40 individuals. The expanded
program population represents the newly expanded capacity supported by this Contract.

2.1 Current Program Population: the Contractor shall provide only those services that
were previously not available to these participants in the HCDC.

2.2 Expanded Program Population: HCDC participants will receive the full array of
services included in this Contract.

3. Staffing

3.1 The Contractor shall provide staff sufficient to perform the contracted services,
including at minimum:

3.1.1 Evaluator (.15 Full Time Equivalent) - this individual will coordinate and
monitor ongoing data collection, data management, provide strategies for
monitoring fidelity to evidence-based practices, support ongoing teaming and
quality improvement, attend weekly Drug Court Team meetings and quarterly
steering committee meetings.

3.1.2 Data Manager (.35 Full Time Equivalent) - this individual will verify that DCIs
entered on the CDP are complete and will address discrepancies at regularly
scheduled review meetings, use the CDP web system and assist in the
preparation of client-level performance data reports, and be responsible for
overall monitoring of data quality.

4. Compliance

4.1 The Contractor's assigned project staff shall comply with the State of New Hampshire
Office of Information Technology Computer Use agreement.

4.2 Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Standards of Care

The Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) recognizes that culture and
language have considerable impact on how consumers access and respond to public
health services. Culturally and linguistically diverse populations experience barriers in
efforts to access health services. To ensure equal access to quality health sen/ices,
the Division of Public Health Services (DPHS) expects that Contractors shall provide
culturally and linguistically appropriate sen/ices according to the following guidelines:

4.2.1 Assess the ethnic/cultural needs, resources and assetsof their community.

4.2.2 Promote the knowledge and skills necessary for staff to work effectively with
consumers with respect to their culturally and linguistically diverse environment.

4.2.3 When feasible and appropriate, provide clients of limited English proficiency
(LEP) with interpretation services. Persons of LEP are defined as those who
do not speak English as their primary language and whose skills in listening to,
speaking, or reading English are such that they are unable to adequately

^ ?Community Health Institute/JSI Exhibit A - Scope of Services Contractor Initials; Q,
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understand and participate in the care or in the services provided to them
without language assistance.

4.2.4 Offer consumers a forum through which families of children served through the
program have the opportunity to provide feedback to providers and
organizations regarding cultural and linguistic issues that may. deserve
response.

The Contractor shall maintain a program policy that sets forth compliance with Title Vl,
Language Efficiency and Proficiency Citation 45 CFR 80.3(b) (2). The policy shall
describe the way in which the herns listed above were addressed and shall indicate the
circumstances in which interpretation services are provided and the method of
providing service (e.g. trained Interpreter, staff person who speaks the language of the
client or language line).

5. Performance and Quality Improvement Measures

5.1 The Ck)ntractor shall survey clients, through a Participant Feedback Survey, to collect
client-level feedback about the program. The collection shall occur at the same time
each program year. All clients still enrolled in the program shall be included in the
survey. The survey will ask clients to rate the overall program and hs specific
components, and ask respondents to answer questions such as, 'What could be done
to improve the program?" and "What do you like best/least about the program?" The
Contractor shall use this data to provide feedback to the Drug Court team so that the
team can tailor improvements to the program accordingly.

5.2 The Contractor shall facilitate and support a data-driven quality improvement process.
The evaluation plan developed by the Contractor shall assess elements such as;

•  Program success in reaching the target population;
•  Strengthening referral partnerships;
•  Fidelity of program implementation;
•  Deviations from the plan and effect on the intervention or evaluation;

•  Documenting who provided designated services to the target population;
and

•  Context of services being provided.

5.3 The Contractor shall facilitate and support periodic evaluation meetings with the Drug
Court Team members in which current data will be reviewed and facilitated

discussions about issues, such as follow-up strategies, clarification of survey questions,
effectiveness of treatment models and barriers to intervention success will occur. The
meetings will also provide a forum for discussing data quality issues and potential
solutions. Both process and outcome evaluation efforts will be further informed
through qualitative data collection during these meetings, key informant interviews, or
open-ended portions of Participant Feedback Surveys.

As part of this effort, outcome evaluation efforts shall include assessing the effects of
the Drug Court on participants, and include contextual and individual factors
associated with outcomes, as well as the durability of these effects. Data from the DCI
and selected questions from Participant Feedback Surveys will be used for outcome
evaluation purposes. The Contractor shall design the outcome evaluation to assess
the intermediate effects of the program on participants' level of functioning, alcohol and

Community Health Institute/JSl Exhibit A-Scope of Services Contractor Initials!®^^^
October 2015 //J / ''
Page 5 of 6 Date: '



New Hampshire Departmer^t of Health and Human Services
Evaluation Services: Hiiisborough County Drug Court Supporting Services

Exhibit A

drug use, and recidivism. The design shall support a focus on the effectiveness of the
program in meeting the goals and objectives of the Drug Court.

5.4 The Contractor shall provide needed data to the program's designated financial
representatives to ensure required quarterly financial reports are provided on a timely
basis.

5.5 The Contractor shall prepare additional reports, upon the Department's request, to
support the activities of the Steering Committee, to present data at CSAT grantee
meetings, and to report Performance Assessment Data to the CSAT annually. The
Contractor shall utilize regular evaluation team meetings to discuss these reports with
the Drug Court Team.
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, block 1.8, of the
General Provisions (P-37) of this Agreement, in consideration for the Contractor's compliarx» with
the terms and conditions of this Agreement and for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant
to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

2. Contract period: October 1. 2015 through September 30.

3. The Contractor shall be reimbursed for providing and delivering the services described in Exhibit A.
Scope of Services, on a cost reimbursement basis and pursuant to the budgets contained in Exhibit
B-1 for the applicable state fiscal year.

4. The Contractor shall ensure services provided urxfer this Agreement, that could tje covered arxJ paid
for by a participant's insurer, are accordingly submitted to such insurer for payment. In no event shall
the Agreement's funds be utilized for services that are covered by such insurers, or any other tNrd
parlies.

5. The services described in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, are funded with Federal funds made availaljle
under:

CFDA #: 93.243

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and
Mental Health Sen/ices Administration

Program Title: SAMHSA Treatment Drug Courts
FAIN: TI026092

6. The Contractor agrees to provide the sen/ices described In Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in
compliance with the Federal requirements applicable to the funding source stated in paragraph 5.

/

7. The Contractor shall submit an Invoice, in a fonn satisfactory to the Department, by the twentieth
working day of each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses
incurred in the prior month. The Department shall make payment to the Contractor, within thirty (30)
days of receipt of such invoice, for services provided pursuant to this Agreement. The final invoice
shall be due to the Department no later than thirty (30) days after the Contract Period's expiration.
The invoice shall be sent to:

Donna Walker

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

8. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
Agreement may be withheld, in whole or In part. In the event of noncompliance with any State or
Federal law. rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have not
been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

9. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37. an amendment limited to the terms of
the General Provisions, adjustments to amounts within the price limitation, may be made by written
agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of Governor and Council.
Budget adjustments will not be accepted after May 30"* of each contract year.

Community Health Instltute/JSI Exhibit B Contractor lniti^5>^^^
October 2015 A, 7
Page 1 of 1 Date: ( U V-



Exhibit B-1

Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Community Htalth lnstl(ute/JSi

Budget Request for: Evalualion Services ♦ Hillsborough County Drue Court Expansion
Budget Period: 10/V1S-6/30/16

Une ftmri:

Direct Indirect . fo5i Atioca^lMMI^
IhcrementM. Fixed IndlreotfFtioa&.Coet

1. Total Salary/Wages $  16.433 $  1.709 $  18,141

2. Employee Benefits S  6.244 $  649 $  6.894

3. Travel S $

In-State 6  750 $  78 %  826

Out-of-State Conference $  5,000 S  520 $  5.520

TOTAL $  28,427 $  2,956 $  31,383

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10.4%

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Contractor Name: Community Health Instltute/JSi

Budoet Request for: Evaluation Services• Hillsboroueh County Drug Court Expansion

Budoet Period: 7/1/16 • 6/30/17

■ . '.I:-.-' . •
Unelte^i: '-'.'V'V IhcrernentaJ

Indirect v:;

i;Fixad•^v^'
Total Allocation Method,fiK:.

' ̂lectfFTxe^^Cd^

1. Total Salary/Wages S  21.910 $ 2.279 $  24.169

2. Employee Benefrts $  8.326 $ 666 $  9.192

3. Travel S - $

In-State S  1.000 s 104 $  1.104

Out-of-State Conference $  5,000 s 520 $  5,520

TOTAL $  36,236 $ 3.769 $  40,004 1
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10.4%

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Contractor Name: Community Health Institute/JSI

Budget Request for: Evaluation Services• Hillsborough County Drug Court Expansion

Budoet Period: 7/1/17 • 6/30/18

Line Item •

Direct;,.;;;
iVicfernefital'

Indirect

rplxed
v.oTotal Altoottlon IMwd for.:^-

•  . ''^'rect/FikedCdet
1. Total Salary/Wages $  21,910 $ 2.279 $  24.189

2. Employee Benefits $  8.326 $ 866 $  V 9.192

3. Travel 6 - $

In-State $  1.000 $ 104 $  1.104

Out-of-State Conference $  5.000 $ 520 $  5.520

TOTAL $  36,236 i 3,769 $  40,004 1

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10.4%

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Contractor Name: Community Hestlh Inslilute/JSI

Budget Request for Evaluation Services- Hillsborough County Drug Court Expansion

Budoet Period: 7/1/18 - 9/30/18

• ' ■ ; •^FB»d • • fhdWctfRxed.Coet-':./.

1. Total Salary/Wages $  5.478 $ 570 $  6.047

2. Employee Benefits $  2.061 s 216 $  2.296

3. Travel $ - S

In-State $  250 $ 26 $  276

Out-of-Siate Conference $ s - $

TOTAL $  7,809 i 812 $  8,621 1

Irxlirect As A Percent of Direct

NH OHHS

10.4%

Contractor Initials:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and. in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is pennitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shaii be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. In which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS; MAINTENANCE. RETENTION, AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, vrithout limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records; Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits. .
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities; In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Exhibit C - special Provisions Contractor Initials
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports; Fiscal and Statistical; The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses Incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report; A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be In a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated In the Proposal
and other Information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs; Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
sun/ive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall Include the following
statement;

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided In part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchas^ under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws vt4iich shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be requir^ for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said sen/ices,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply vrith all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be In conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR). If it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
follovring shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This Is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying ail subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance v/ilt be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

if the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the foiiovring terms shall have the following meanings;

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and Indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established In accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual vrftich is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor In accordance with the terms and coivlitions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible Individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified In Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A. for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Inrtiais.

0S/37/U Pape 5 of 5 Date/V Vu >" ^



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Evaluation Services: HIItst>orough County Drug Court Supporting Services

Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract. Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follovkrs;

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder. including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
inclucfing any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
m^ifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in ExNbit A. Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account{s) identified in block 1.6 of the General FVovisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of tNs contract. Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State. 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Ran including, but not limited to, any Infomiation or

'  data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as

'  requested.

10.4 In the event that services urKler the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having sen/ices delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of sen/ices in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Division reserves the right to renew the Agreement for up to three additional years, subject to
the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Govemor and Executive Council.

Community Heeltti Instltut^JSI Exhibit C-i - Revisions to StanOaoJ Provisions Cootroctor Initials ^
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to avrard. that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sut>-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit 0 - Certification regafding Drug Free Coniractof Initi^e J 7
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(5} of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the follONMng actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent v^th the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2,1.3,1.4,1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the $ite(s) for the performance of work done in
connection vwth the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name: J'Sr

Date NameTT^
Title;

Exhibit 0 - Certification regarding Drug Free Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions a9rees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE •! CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed v^en this transaction
was made or entered Into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

/(3^ 3 r

Date 5Name:

Title: t

ContractorName: ^

Exhibit E - Certification Regarding Lobbying Contractor initials.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred." "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
'voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it Is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension Contractor Initials
And Other Responsibility Matters
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
'  covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is

suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, OHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knov^edge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a Oiree-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, t^bery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a govemmentai entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (i)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that It and its principals:
13.1. are not presently deban-ed, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibility. and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: < Trai/ll/^
/y / '

/0- 3o.
Date Name;

Title:
/<
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CERTIFiCATlQN OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDiSCRiMiNATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera) Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, v/ith any applicable
federal nondiscrlmlnation requirements, which may include;

-  the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either In employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

■ the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
senrices or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons vrith disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), Nvhich prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government vride suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G
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in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: JSX I

o. 'i
Date Name:

Title:

Exhibit G
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part 0 - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified In Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: O i- ' UL^eUYun i ^

Date Name:

Title:

u

/
1/^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data AQoreoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII. Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
Information' in 45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/20W Exhibit I Contractor initials
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I. "Required by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

1

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart 0. and amendments thereto.

o. "Unsecured Protected Hearth Information" means protected health information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Heam^ Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (il) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at Its ofTices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. , Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528. ^

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to fonA/arded requests. However, if fonA^arding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) . Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation{s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provid^ to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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SeoreQation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duty executed this Exhibit I. t l ^

Name of the-^ntcThe State

"fVlrvHALljiULurN
Signature of Authorized Representative

n
Name of Authorized Representative

Title oJAuthepied Representative

i\W\T
Date '

Signature at A^^tti^rized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

/O-
Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATA^ COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award Is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Name of entity

2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

contractor Name: 053:

2^ r
z.

Date Name:

Title:
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: m-57a.?ii7

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO X YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO X YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name;

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;
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